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new products, services,
markets and technology that
will power Temple-Inland

in the future.




Temple-Inland is a holding company with operations in paper, building products
and financial services.

The Paper Group produces containerboard and a complete line of corrugated
containers, including shipping boxes, retail packaging and point-of-purchase displays

The Building Products Group manufactures a wide range of building products
including lumber, particleboard, medium density fiberboard, gypsum wallboard
and fiberboard products.

Forest resources include approximately 2.2 million acres of timberland located
in Texas, Louisiana, Georgia and Alabama.

The Financial Services Group includes a full service bank, a mortgage banking
company, an insurance agency and a real estate development firm.

Temple-Inland Inc. is a Delaware corporation that was organized in 1983
Its principal subsidiaries include Inland Paperboard and Packaging, Inc.
Temple-Inland Forest Products Corporation; Temple-Inland Financial Services
Inc.; Guaranty Bank; and Temple-Inland Mortgage Corporation.

Temple-Inland’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and
the Pacific Exchange under the ticker symbol TIN.

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The actual
results achieved by Temple-Inland may differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-
looking statements. Factors that might cause such differences include general economic, market or
business conditions; the opportunities (or lack thereof) that may be presented to and pursued by
Temple-Inland and its subsidiaries; the availability and price of raw materials used by Temple-Inland
and its subsidiaries; competitive actions by other companies; changes in laws or regulations; and
other circumstances, many of which are beyond the control of Temple-Inland and its subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Percent

2000 1999 Change
(in millions, except per share data)
REVENUES ... $ 4,286 $ 3,808 13 %
Income from continuing operations (before special charge) ........... $ 204 $ 191 7 %
Net INCOME. ... $ 195 $ 99 97 %
Income from continuing operations
per diluted share (before special charge)...................................... $ 401w $ 3.43 17 %
Net income per diluted share ... $ 3.83 $ 1.78 115 %
Dividends per share ... $ 1.28 $ 1.28 - %
Book value per share ... $37.25 $ 35.55 5%
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding..................... .. 50.9 55.8 9%
Common shares outstanding at year end............................. 49.2 54.2 9%
(@) Excludes after-tax special charge of $9 million or $0.18 per diluted share.
SELECTED BUSINESS SEGMENT DATA
Percent
2000 1999 Change
(in millions)
Revenues
PaPEL ..o $ 2,089 $1,869 12 %
Building Products ... $ 828 $ 823 1 %
Financial Services ...........c.coooi oo $ 1,369 $1,116 23 %
Operating Income
PaDET. ..o $ 205 $ 103 99 %
Building Products ... $ 68 $ 174 (61)%
Financial Services ... $ 189 $ 138 37 %



To our Shareholders,

At Temple-Inland, we are committed to creating shareholder value by focusing on customers and providing

quality products. In 2000, we realized benefits from these initiatives, and our financial performance

improved over 1999. Looking to the future, we renew our commitment to create value by remaining

focused on customers and products, which are the cornerstone principles of a market-driven company.

2000 Financial Performance

Income for 2000 before special charges was $204 million,
or $4.01 per diluted share, compared with income from
continuing operations of $191 million, or $3.43 per diluted
share in 1999. Revenues for 2000 were $4.3 billion, com-
pared with 1999 revenues from continuing operations of
$3.8 billion. Results improved in 2000 despite a significant
decline in the earnings contribution from the Building

Products Group, which experienced a record year in 1999.

2000 Initiatives
While we made progress in improving earnings and returns in
2000, we took a number of steps during the year that will con-

tinue to drive earning power and returns in 2001 and beyond.

Implement technology and e-commerce. Each of our three
operating groups is implementing new information tech-
nology systems that will provide a foundation for better
managing relationships and interactions with customers,
lower costs and facilitate our ability to take full advantage
of e-commerce initiatives. Integrated Package and Point
Solutions (IPPS) provides state-of-the-art capabilities for
our Paper Group, including product configuration, finite
scheduling, real time production data collection and product
delivery. This system also provides the foundation for
making available, via the Internet, customer self-service,
collaborative product design and information exchange
with customer systems. Through a project called Update,
the Building Products Group is upgrading its proprietary,
real-time Order-to-Cash customer interface system. Update
will provide on-line order entry, order status, invoicing,
pricing and real time product availability, helping customers
manage their inventory more efficiently. As part of Customer
First, the Financial Services Group has developed a technology
enhanced customer relationship management system that
will provide a comprehensive profile of each customer,
including financial needs and cross-selling opportunities. It
will help ensure that each customer receives high-touch,

high-quality service through multiple delivery channels.

Lower capital investment. The improvement in return on
investment in 2000 resulted, in part, from lower capital

investment as working capital levels declined due primarily

to reductions in inventory. For example, at year-end 2000,
our containerboard inventories were more than 60,000 tons
lower than at year-end 1999 as we improved our inventory
management and forecasting capabilities. Throughout our
company, compensation is based on return on capital. This

has resulted in lower capital investment levels.

Maintain low cost operations. Although we are a market-
driven company, we are also committed to having low-cost
operations. For example, despite the fact that our businesses
have grown substantially over the past four years, our

number of employees has remained constant.

Modify Newport mill. In mid-2000, the Newport, Indiana,
joint venture mill was modified to enable it to produce
lightweight gypsum facing paper. This will improve the
Paper Group’s integration level, diversify its product line

and ultimately lower industry containerboard capacity.

Dispose of Fortra Fiber-Cement. Our fiber-cement operation
did not meet our return requirements. Therefore, we elected
to exit this business and entered into a long-term agreement
to lease the Fortra Fiber-Cement LLC venture’s fiber-cement

operation to James Hardie Building Products, Inc.

Modernize Pineland complex. We are modernizing our
Pineland, Texas, complex by adding a sawmill and closing
a plywood facility. Each of our sawmills has now been

modernized and utilizes new generation technology.

Increase forest growth. We continue to focus on growing
more fiber through improved silviculture practices. In
2000, our nursery produced larger diameter and more
uniform seedlings. Specific seedlings were then matched
with certain sites to create optimum growth. This resulted
in an average tree growth of 2.5 feet in the first year, a 50
percent increase compared with growth rates experienced

before we began an intensive planting program in 199;.

Launch Guaranty Financial Services. Late in 2000, we
decided to link the banking, mortgage and insurance
operations under a common banner, Guaranty Financial

Services. This will increase awareness of the broad spectrum

of financial services offered to individuals and businesses
and provide opportunities to jointly market services.
Additionally, the bank acquired American Finance Group,
Inc., an equipment leasing and financing company, and
more than doubled the size of its asset based lending portfolio.
These transactions further the bank’s diversification strategy

and provide additional earnings capabilities.

Repurchase shares. During the third quarter 2000, the Company
completed its authorized share repurchase of 6 million
shares, and the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase
of an additional 2.5 million shares. Since November 1999,
the Company has repurchased 6.75 million shares under
these authorizations.

Outlook

Although the slowdown in the domestic economy and the
strength of the dollar have had an adverse effect on the
demand for corrugated containers and building products,
we are encouraged about the long-term outlook for all

three of our businesses.

In paper, very little new containerboard capacity is expected
within the next three years, and growth in demand for corru-

gated containers is anticipated to return to trendline levels.

The demand for building products is driven by new housing
and repair and remodeling markets, both of which slowed
in 2000. However, these markets are projected to grow in
the future due to an increase in home ownership resulting
from certain demographic trends, including aging of the
baby boomers, a fast growing minority population and an
increase in immigrants. The steady growth in the number
of homeowners, together with the shift toward older, larger
and more expensive homes, should support increases in
remodeling spending in years ahead. Building products
markets are currently oversupplied, resulting in a chal-
lenging operating environment. However, several older,
inefficient sawmills and gypsum mills within the industry

have been shut down, and more closures are anticipated.

The Financial Services Group had record earnings in 2000.
The bank’s high-touch strategy should ensure continued
growth of a low-cost deposit base. We continue to grow
and diversify the loan portfolio by geography and product.
By growing its targeted customer base, diversifying its assets
and capitalizing on cross-sell opportunities, the Financial
Services Group is positioned to continue to provide steadily

growing earnings in the future.

The long-term outlook for all our markets is positive, and
we have positioned Temple-Inland to take advantage of
future growth. At Temple-Inland, we believe our unique
combination of assets gives us significant earning capability

over an economic cycle.

Our focus on ROI-based compensation will ensure
that we use capital prudently and maintain efficient, low-cost
operations. We will continue to actively look for opportunities
to grow each of our businesses, but only if such growth

helps us drive earning power and returns.

Respect for the environment and responsible environmental
practices are core values at Temple-Inland. We are com-
mitted to continuously improving and expanding our

environmental programs.

We thank the Board of Directors for their leadership and
welcome James A. Johnson, W. Allen Reed and James T.
Hackett to our Board. Their backgrounds and experiences

bring unique and valuable perspectives to our company.

We also welcome Dale E. Stahl as president and chief operating
officer of the Paper Group. Dale’s more than 20 years of
experience in the paper industry, understanding of markets
and focus on customers will be crucial as we continue to

implement and expand our market-driven strategy.

Thank you to all our employees for your commitment to
provide quality products and service to our customers.
Each one of us makes a difference, and our collective effort
is key to creating shareholder value. We also appreciate the
significant amount of individual volunteer work performed
by our employees, which helps strengthen the communities

where we live and work.

Finally, we thank our shareholders for your confidence in

Temple-Inland. We are focused on creating value for you.

Sincerely,
LJA«.:L W\ /QM' @

KENNETH M. JASTROW, II
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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“We don’t just sell what we make. We make

what you need.” This customer-focused philosophy
of Temple-Inland’s Paper Group extends
throughout the Company, driving the success

of new products and services and ensuring

continued expansion in Temple-Inland’s markets.
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Temple-Inland has an industry-respected

history of producing innovative products.

The Company is committed to creating

products that bring value to its customers,

and have the potential for high growth and

excellent rates of return.

PRODUCT
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Temple-Inland’s technology advances will help

LIXUYN

expand its market presence by bringing the

Company closer to its customers, providing greater

visibility to industry trends and enabling highly-

effective responses to growing market demands.




MARKET ﬁ




10 Temple-Inland 2000 Annual Report Delivering on the Promise of Environmental Stewardship and Community Involvement

Temple-Inland is committed to being

a leader in environmental stewardship and

service to its communities.

SERVE







Temple-Inland renews its commitment to stakeholders to provide excellent
customer service; create innovative, quality products; identify new markets with
high growth potential; and continue the Company’s history of environmental
stewardship and community support.

At Temple-Inland, we are focused on creating value for our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

SUMMARY

Consolidated revenues were $4.3 billion in 2000, $3.8 billion in 1999 and $3.4 billion in 1998. Segment operating income was
$462 million in 2000, $415 million in 1999 and $305 million in 1998. Income from continuing operations was $195 million in 2000,
$191 million in 1999 and $88 million in 1998. Income from continuing operations per diluted share was $3.83 in 2000, $3.43 in
1999 and $1.59 in 1998. The year 2000 results include a $15 million special charge related to the decision to exit the fiber-cement
business. The year 1998 results include a $47 million special charge related to work force reductions and asset impairment.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The company manages its operations through three business segments: Paper, Building Products and Financial Services.
A summary of the results of operations by business segment follows.

For the year

(in millions)

Revenues

Building Products
Financial Services
Total revenues

Income Before Taxes

Financial Services..
Segment operating income

Corporate expense
Special charge
Parent company interest.

Income from continuing operations before taxes.
Income taxes
Income from continuing operations

Each of these business segments is affected by the factors
of supply and demand and changes in domestic and global
economic conditions. These conditions include, but are
not limited to, changes in interest rates, new housing
starts, home repair and remodeling activities, and the
strength of the U.S. dollar, some or all of which may have
varying degrees of impact on the business segments.

The Paper Group

The Paper Group manufactures containerboard that it
converts into a complete line of corrugated packaging and
point of purchase displays. The Paper Group operations
consist of four linerboard mills, one corrugating medium

2000

$ 1,707
660
1,036

$ 3,403

mill, 41 box plants, eight specialty-converting plants and
an interest in a gypsum facing paper joint venture, which
for some time also may continue to produce corrugating
medium. The Paper Group’s facilities are located throughout
the United States and in Chile, Mexico and Puerto Rico.

The Paper Group’s revenues were $2.1 billion in 2000,
$1.9 billion in 1999 and $1.7 billion in 1998. Compared with
the preceding year, average domestic box prices were up
17 percent in 2000, 3 percent in 1999 and 7 percent in 1998.
Domestic box shipments were 2.0 million tons in 2000,
2.1 million tons in 1999 and 2.0 million tons in 1998. The
increases in prices in 2000 and 1999 and the decrease in
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shipments in 2000 were due in part to an upgrading and
realignment of the customer base as part of the Paper
Group’s ongoing revenue enhancement initiatives. A slowing
of demand beginning in the second quarter 2000 and
continuing throughout the year also contributed to the
decrease in box shipments in 2000. Compared with the
preceding year, average linerboard prices were up
20 percent in 2000, 6 percent in 1999 and 12 percent in 1998.

Compared with the third quarter 2000, fourth quarter
2000 revenues were down slightly with average box prices
and linerboard prices about even and box and linerboard
shipments down slightly. During the first quarter 2001, this
trend of lower box and linerboard shipments continued.
This trend, coupled with a decrease in the published price
for linerboard during January 2001, may result in downward
pressure on box prices.

Production, distribution and administrative costs were
$1.9 billion in 2000, $1.8 billion in 1999 and $1.7 billion in
1998. Costs for 2000 were up due to higher energy and old
corrugated containers (OCC) costs coupled with increased
outside purchases of corrugating medium. Energy costs,
principally natural gas, began to rise during the second
quarter 2000 and continued to rise throughout the year.
During 2000, energy costs were up $10 million compared
with 1999. OCC accounted for about 41 percent of the
Paper Group’s fiber requirements in 2000 and 46 percent
in 1999 and 1998. OCC costs rose dramatically during the
first quarter 2000, but began to decline near the end of the
second quarter 2000 and continued to decline throughout
the year. OCC costs averaged $107 per ton in 2000, $89 per
ton in 1999 and $85 per ton in 1998. OCC costs averaged
$139 per ton in second quarter 2000, $91 per ton in third
quarter 2000 and $74 per ton in fourth quarter 2000. Year-end
OCC prices were $67 per ton in 2000, $99 per ton in 1999 and
$85 per ton in 1998. OCC costs remained at these levels early
in 2001. However, OCC costs traditionally rise as box
demand improves. Outside purchases of corrugating
medium increased in 2000 due to the conversion of the
Newport, Indiana, joint venture corrugating medium mill.

Mill production was 2.3 million tons in 2000, 2.7 million tons
in 1999 and 2.5 million tons in 1998. Of the mill production,
20 percent in 2000, 20 percent in 1999 and 13 percent in
1998 was sold in the domestic and export markets. The
Paper Group’s converting operations used the remainder
of the mill production. The decrease in production was
due to curtailments throughout the year and the conversion
of the Newport, Indiana, corrugating medium mill during
the third quarter 2000. Production was curtailed by 315,000
tons in 2000 due to market, maintenance and operational

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

factors. During the fourth quarter 2000, production was
curtailed by 135,000 tons including a shut down of the
Ontario, California, mill for most of December 2000. The
Ontario mill was shut down due to higher energy prices
and weaker box demand. The mill resumed production in
January 2001. Year-end 2000 inventories were down about
60,000 tons compared with year-end 1999, as the Paper
Group continues to improve the balance between its supply
and the demand of its customers. Production curtailments
were minimal during 1999 and 1998.

The Paper Group’s joint venture conversion of its Newport,
Indiana, mill to enable it to produce lightweight gypsum
facing paper was completed during the third quarter
2000 with start-up efforts continuing through fourth
quarter 2000. For both start-up and market reasons, the
venture did not produce significant volumes of gypsum
facing paper during fourth quarter 2000. This conversion
reduced the Paper Group’s annualized productive capacity
by 285,000 tons. The mill remains capable of producing
corrugating medium, and for a period of twelve months
after the conversion of the mill, the Paper Group is
obligated to purchase, at market rates, the medium
produced by the venture that meets the Paper Group’s
specifications. During the third and fourth quarters
2000, the Paper Group purchased 72,000 tons of medium
from the venture.

The Paper Group has undertaken a number of initiatives
to enhance return on investment. An important and ongoing
initiative is the design and installation of new information
systems, portions of which were installed during the fourth
quarter 2000. It is anticipated that the remainder will be
installed during 2001 and 2002. Other initiatives include the
December 1999 sale of the discontinued bleached paper-
board operation, which resulted in a $71 million loss; the
1998 closing and dismantling of the Newark, California,
mill and the subsequent sale of the land, which resulted in
a $13 million gain; and the sale of the Argentine operation
and domestic workforce reductions, which resulted in
a $37 million special charge in 1998.

Operating income was $205 million in 2000, $103 million
in 1999 and $39 million, excluding the $37 million special
charge, in 1998.

The Building Products Group

The Building Products Group produces a variety of building
products including lumber, plywood, particleboard,
fiberboard, medium density fiberboard (MDF) and gypsum
wallboard. The Building Products Group operations consist
of 19 facilities, including interests in a gypsum joint venture

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

and an MDF joint venture, and two facilities, a particleboard
plant and a medium density fiberboard plant, operated
under long-term lease agreements that began during
December 1999. The Building Products Group operates
throughout the United States and in Canada and manages
the company’s 2.2 million acres of owned and leased forest-
lands located in Texas, Louisiana, Georgia and Alabama.

The Building Products Group’s revenues were $828 million
in 2000, $823 million in 1999 and $660 million in 1998.
Average prices for lumber, plywood, particleboard and
gypsum began to decline during the first quarter 2000 and
continued to fall throughout the year. Average MDF prices
rose slightly during 2000 due to improved product mix.
Average prices for all products manufactured by the Building
Products Group were higher during 1999 compared with
1998. For the year 2000, shipments of lumber, particle-
board and MDF were up compared with 1999 due to a full
year’s operation of the Diboll sawmill and the Mt. Jewett
particleboard and MDF facilities. Other revenues were up
in 2000 due to deliveries under the long-term fiber supply
agreement entered into in connection with the sale of the
bleached paperboard mill in December 1999. Compared
with the third quarter 2000, fourth quarter 2000 revenues
were down 20 percent with average prices and shipments
down for all products. During the first quarter 2001, these
trends of lower prices and shipments continued.

Production, distribution and administrative costs were
$760 million in 2000, $649 million in 1999 and $548 million
in 1998. Cost of sales for 2000 were up due to additional
manufacturing facilities, higher energy costs, and $13 million
of operating losses from the fiber-cement joint venture,
which the group exited in the third quarter 2000. Energy
costs, principally natural gas, began to rise during the second
quarter 2000 and continued to rise throughout the year.
During 2000, energy costs were up approximately $7 million
compared with 1999. During the third quarter 2000, the
Building Products Group completed the assessment of its
fiber-cement joint venture and decided to exit this business
by assuming control of the joint venture and leasing
most of its production assets to a third party. As a result,
a $15 million special charge was recognized that included
$11 million for assets excluded from the lease agreement
that will be disposed of and $4 million for other costs.
Following a six-month rental ramp-up period, the lease
agreement provides for payments of $3.4 million per year
over the balance of the 19% year lease term.

Beginning in the third quarter 2000 and continuing
through the balance of the year, production was curtailed
in all product lines due to market conditions. For the
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fourth quarter 2000, production averaged from a low of
54 percent to a high of 76 percent of capacity in the various
product lines. In early 2001, further production curtailments
were announced including a temporary shut down of the
MDF joint venture plant in El Dorado, Arkansas, due to
market conditions, higher energy prices and reconstruction
of the plant’s heat energy system. The plant is anticipated
to resume production in June 2001 following completion
of the reconstruction project. Production levels in 2001 will
depend on demand levels for the various products.
Production curtailments were minimal during 1999 and 1998.

Operating income was $68 million, excluding the $15 million
special charge, in 2000, $174 million in 1999 and $112 million,
excluding a $10 million special charge for asset impair-
ment, in 1998.

The Financial Services Group

The Financial Services Group operates a savings bank and
engages in mortgage banking, insurance brokerage and
real estate activities.

The savings bank, Guaranty Bank (Guaranty), conducts
business through banking centers in Texas and California.
The primary business of Guaranty includes providing deposit
products to the general public, investing in single-family
adjustable-rate mortgages, lending for the construction of
real estate projects and the financing of business operations,
and providing a variety of other financial products to
consumers and businesses. During 2000, Guaranty acquired
American Finance Group, Inc. (AFG), a commercial finance
company engaged in leasing and secured financing of
a variety of types of equipment. During 1999, Guaranty
acquired Hemet Federal Savings and Loan Association
(Hemet) and also acquired the assets of Fidelity Funding
Inc. (Fidelity), an asset based lending company. Hemet
operated 18 branches in the Southern California markets
of Riverside County, Palm Springs and northern San
Diego County. During February 2001, Guaranty acquired
an asset based loan portfolio and two production offices
for approximately $300 million in cash.

The mortgage banking operation arranges mortgage
financing of single-family homes, securitizes the mortgage
loans, sells the resulting securities in the secondary market
and services mortgage loans for Guaranty and unrelated third
parties. The insurance brokerage operation sells a full range
of insurance products. The real estate operations include the
development of residential subdivisions and multi-family
housing and the management and sale of income producing
properties. The real estate operations are principally located
in Texas, Colorado, Florida, Tennessee and California.
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The Financial Services Group revenues, consisting of interest and noninterest income, were $1.4 billion in 2000,

$1.1 billion in 1999 and $1.0 billion in 1998. Selected financial information for the Financial Services Group follows:

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Operating Income
Net interest income $ 389 $ 299 $ 244
Provision for loan losses (39) (38) (1)
Noninterest income 280 280 298
NONINEEreSt EXPENSE ..o (423) (388) (373)
(18) (15) (14)
$ 189 $ 138 $ 154
By Activity
Savings Bank ... $ 168 $ 109 $ 113
Mortgage Banking..............coccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 11 19 22
Real BState. ... 3 4 13
Insurance Brokerage. ... 7 6 6
Total....oo $ 189 $ 138 $ 154
Operations Noninterest expense, which consists primarily of compen-

Net interest income was $389 million in 2000, $299 million
in 1999 and $244 million in 1998. The increases in net
interest income in each successive year were primarily the
result of growth in average earning assets and a change in
the mix of earning assets. Average earning assets were
$13.5 billion in 2000, compared with $11.9 billion in 1999
and $10.4 billion in 1998.

The provision for loan losses was $39 million in 2000,
$38 million in 1999 and $1 million in 1998. The increase in
the provision in 1999 compared with 1998 was the result
of growth, a change in the mix of the loan portfolio and
a decline in asset quality related to several mortgage
warehouse loans.

Noninterest income, which consists primarily of income
from real estate and insurance activities, loan related fees and
service charges on deposits, was $280 million in 2000,
unchanged from 1999, and was $298 million in 1998. The
2000 noninterest income was affected by increases in real
estate and insurance activities and the savings bank’s focus on
fee-based products such as operating leases through the AFG
acquisition, alternative investments and cash management
services. However, these increases were offset by a decline in
noninterest income from mortgage banking activities due to the
impact of the higher interest rate environment on mortgage
financing and refinancing activities. The decrease in noninterest
income in 1999 compared with 1998 was primarily the
result of the sale of a large commercial property in 1998.

sation and benefits, occupancy and data processing was
$423 million in 2000, $388 million in 1999 and $373 million
in 1998. Approximately $25 million of the increase in
noninterest expense in 2000 compared with 1999 was the
result of the Hemet, Fidelity and AFG acquisitions. After
adjusting for the impact of these acquisitions, noninterest
expense increased $10 million, or 3 percent, in 2000 compared
with 1999. Approximately $9 million of the increase in
noninterest expense in 1999 compared with 1998 was the
result of the Hemet and Fidelity acquisitions.

Earning Assets

Interest income from earning assets is the main source of
income for the Financial Services Group. Average earning
assets totaled $13.5 billion in 2000, $11.9 billion in 1999 and
$10.4 billion in 1998. A portion of the increase in average
earning assets was the result of the Hemet and Fidelity
acquisitions, which occurred in mid-1999. In addition, the
AFG acquisition in 2000 increased average earning assets.
The remainder of the increases in earning assets was due
to internally generated growth, primarily in construction
and development loans and in commercial and business
loans, resulting in a change in the mix of average loans
and improved spreads.

Loan demand remained strong throughout 2000. Average
loans receivable and mortgage loans held for sale totaled $10.4
billion in 2000, $9.5 billion in 1999 and $7.7 billion in 1998.
Average loans receivable and mortgage loans held for sale
as a percentage of average earning assets were 77 percent in
2000, compared with 79 percent in 1999 and 74 percent in 1998.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

During 2000, the Financial Services Group continued to
securitize portions of the mortgage loans held in its portfolio,
ending the year with $689 million in securitized mortgage
loans. Average loans receivable, mortgage loans held for sale
and securitized mortgage loans as a percentage of average
earning assets were 82 percent in 2000, 85 percent in 1999
and 81 percent in 1998.

The Financial Services Group’s lending activities are subject
to underwriting standards and liquidity considerations.
The Financial Services Group continued to increase the size
and alter the mix of the loan portfolio through increased
construction and development lending, and commercial
and business loans and the introduction of new products.
These changes to the loan portfolio provide further product
and geographic diversification.

Specific underwriting criteria for each type of loan are
outlined in a credit policy approved by the Board of Directors
of Guaranty. In general, commercial loans are evaluated
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based on cash flow, collateral, market conditions, prevailing
economic trends, leverage capacity of the borrower and
capital and investment in a particular property, if applicable.
Most small business and consumer loans are underwritten
using credit-scoring models that consider factors including
payment capacity, credit history and collateral. In addition,
market conditions and economic trends are considered.
The credit policy, including the underwriting criteria for
loan categories, is reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted
when warranted.

Average mortgage-backed and other securities totaled
$3.0 billion in 2000, $2.3 billion in 1999 and $2.6 billion
in 1998. The increase in average mortgage-backed and other
securities in 2000 was the result of purchases of $1.0 billion
offset by maturities and prepayments. The decrease in
average mortgage-backed and other securities in 1999 was
primarily the result of maturities and prepayments on
mortgage-backed securities.

Asset Quality

Several key measures are used to evaluate and monitor the asset quality of the Financial Services Group. These measures include

the level of loan delinquencies, nonperforming loans, nonperforming assets and net loan charge-offs compared to average

loans and are summarized in the following table.

At year end 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Accruing loans past due 30-89 days...................coooi $ 170 $ 95 $ 131
Accruing loans past due 9o days or more.........................o... 6 6 9
Accruing loans past due 30 days or more ............................. $ 176 $ 101 $ 140
Nonaccrual 1oans ... $ 65 $ 85 $ 48
Restructured 1oans ... - - -
Nonperforming loans. 65 85 48
Foreclosed property...............ccoocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 3 8 15
Nonperforming ASSCLS. o $ 68 $ 93 $ 63
Allowance for 10an 108SeS.................oooo $ 118 $ 113 $ 87
Net charge-offs...............oii $ 36 $ 24 $ 5
Nonperforming loan ratio.....................ooi 0.62% 0.90% 0.58%
Nonperforming asset ratio ... 0.65% 0.99% 0.77%
Allowance for loan losses/total loans....................... 1.12% 1.20% 1.06%
Allowance for loan losses/nonperforming loans..................... 179.73% 133.52% 180.79%
Net loans charged off/average loans.................................... 0.35% 0.26% 0.07%
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Accruing delinquent loans past due 30 days or more were
1.67 percent of total loans at year-end 2000, 1.07 percent at
year-end 1999 and 1.71 percent at year-end 1998. Accruing
delinquent loans past due 9o days or more were 0.06 percent
of total loans at year-end 2000, 0.07 percent at year-end 1999
and 0.10 percent at year-end 1998.

Nonperforming loans consist of nonaccrual loans (loans on
which interest income is not currently recognized) and
restructured loans (loans with below market interest rates
or other concessions due to deteriorated financial condition
of the borrower). Interest payments received on nonper-
forming loans are applied to reduce principal if there is
doubt as to the collectibility of contractually due principal
and interest. The level of nonperforming loans declined in
both dollars and as a percent of total loans in 2000 compared
with 1999, while the allowance for loan losses as a percent
of nonperforming loans increased.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is comprised of specific
allowances (assessed for loans that have known credit weak-
nesses), general allowances and an unallocated allowance.
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Management continuously evaluates the allowance for
loan losses to ensure the level is adequate to absorb losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. The allowance is increased by
charges to income and by the portion of the purchase price
related to credit risk on bulk purchases of loans and by
acquisitions, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries.

Specific allowances are established based on a thorough
review of the financial condition of the borrower, general
economic conditions affecting the borrower, collateral values
and other factors. General allowances are established based
on historical loss trends and management’s judgment
concerning those trends and other relevant factors, including
delinquency rates, current economic conditions, loan size,
industry competition and consolidation, and the effect of
government regulation. The unallocated allowance is estab-
lished for inherent loss exposures that are not yet specifically
identified in the loan and lease portfolio. The evaluation of
the appropriate level of unallocated allowance considers
current risk factors that may not be reflected in historical
factors used to determine the specific and general
allowances. These factors include inherent delays in obtaining
information and the volatility of economic conditions.

The allowance for loan losses by loan type and related loan balance follows:

2000 1999 1998
Allowance Allowance Allowance
Loan for Loan Loan for Loan Loan for Loan
At year end Balance Losses Balance Losses Balance Losses
(in millions)
Real estate mortgage...................... $ 3,618 $ 26 $ 3,763 $ 60 $ 4,105 $ 36
Construction and development
(including residential) ............... 4,007 30 3,253 24 2,210 17
Commercial and business............... 1,681 31 1,265 12 1,031 14
Consumer and other..................... 1,215 5 1,121 5 827 3
Premiums, discounts and
deferred fees,net ...................... 8 - 7 - 15 -
Unallocated................................... - 26 - 12 - 17
$ 10,529 $ 118 $ 9,409 $ 113 $ 8,188 $ 87

The decrease in allowance for loan losses during 2000 was
primarily the result of net charge-offs. The increase during
1999 was the result of the change in the mix of the loan port-
folio, the Hemet acquisition and a decline in asset quality.

The allowance allocated to the real estate mortgage portfolio
decreased $34 million in 2000, primarily due to the charge-off of
mortgage warehouse loans for which provision had previously
been made. The allowance allocated to the commercial and

business portfolio increased $19 million in 2000 due to
provisions recorded relating to several large syndicated
commercial loans. The increase in the unallocated
allowance in 2000 is reflective of the slowing economic
activity and an increase in the size of the loan portfolio.

While the Financial Services Group considers the allowance
for loan losses to be adequate based on information
currently available, adjustments to the allowance may be
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necessary due to changes in economic conditions,
assumptions as to future delinquencies or loss rates and
intent with regard to asset disposition options. In addition,
regulatory authorities periodically review the allowance for
loan losses as a part of their examination process. Based
on their review, the regulatory authorities may require
adjustments to the allowance for loan losses based on their
judgment about the information available to them at the
time of their review.

Funding Sources

Deposits are the Financial Services Group’s primary funding
source. Guaranty offers a variety of deposit products
designed to attract and retain customers. Average deposits
totaled $9.6 billion in 2000, $8.2 billion in 1999 and
$7.3 billion in 1998. Growth in average deposits totaled
$1.4 billion or 17 percent in 2000 and $908 million or 12 percent
in 1999. A portion of the increase in both 2000 and 1999
was the result of the Hemet acquisition, which occurred in
mid-1999. The remainder of the increase was the result of
internally generated growth through new products and
marketing campaigns.

Borrowings are another source of funding. The Financial
Services Group’s borrowings consist primarily of advances
from the Federal Home Loan Bank and securities sold
under repurchase agreements. Average borrowings were
$3.2 billion in 2000, $3.0 billion in 1999 and $2.4 billion in
1998. The increase in average borrowings in both 2000 and
1999 resulted from funding needs as average earning asset
growth outpaced average deposit growth.

Mortgage Bank Activities

Higher interest rates during 2000 resulted in a significant
industry wide reduction in mortgage refinancing activity,
contributing to a reduction in both mortgage loan
origination volume and prepayments. Mortgage origination
volume was $2.1 billion in 2000, $3.7 billion in 1999 and
$6.1 billion in 1998. Mortgage servicing portfolio runoff
was 13.9 percent in 2000, 21.0 percent in 1999 and 28.9 percent
in 1998. The mortgage servicing portfolio was $19.5 billion
at year-end 2000 and $22.2 billion at year-end 1999. The
decline in mortgage origination volume and servicing has
necessitated staff reductions, branch closures and consoli-
dations. The workforce engaged in mortgage bank activities
was reduced by about 200 during 2000.
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CORPORATE, INTEREST AND OTHER

Parent company interest expense was $104 million in 2000,
$95 million in 1999 and $78 million in 1998. Parent company
interest expense for 1999 and 1998 was reduced by $28 million
each year to reflect an allocation of parent company debt to
the bleached paperboard operation, which was sold at year-
end 1999. The changes in parent company interest expense
were due to fluctuating debt levels and interest rates.

PENSION CREDITS

Non-cash pension credits were $9 million in 2000, $1 million
in 1999 and $9 million in 1998. The increase in 2000 reflects
cumulative performance of the pension plan assets in 1999
that resulted in an excess of plan assets over liabilities at
year-end 1999. Based upon the actuarial valuation as of year-
end 2000, the pension credit for 2001 will approximate
$19 million, due mainly to continued better than expected
performance of the pension plan assets in 2000.

INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate was 39 percent in 2000, 38 percent in
1999 and 44 percent in 1998. The difference between the
effective tax rate and the statutory rate is due to state
income taxes, nondeductible goodwill amortization and
losses in certain foreign operations for which no financial
benefit was recognized. The 1999 effective tax rate reflects
a one time, two percent financial benefit realized as the result
of the sale of the Argentine operation. The 1998 effective
tax rate reflects the effects of lower overall earnings and
larger losses in foreign operations for which no financial
benefit was recognized.

AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING

Average diluted shares outstanding were 50.9 million in
2000, down nine percent due mainly to the effects of share
repurchases under the stock repurchase programs authorized
during the fourth quarter 1999 and the third quarter 2000.
Average diluted shares outstanding were 55.8 million in
1999 and 55.9 million in 1998.



10 Temple-Inland

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY FOR THE YEAR 2000

The consolidated net assets invested in the Financial Services
Group are subject, in varying degrees, to regulatory rules
and regulations. Accordingly, Parent Company and the
Financial Services Group capital resources and liquidity
are discussed separately.

Parent Company

Operating Activities

Cash from operations was $372 million, up 17 percent. The
increase was due to more efficient use of working capital
and an increase in the dividends received from the Financial
Services Group.

Depreciation and amortization was $201 million, about
equal to last year.

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures were $223 million, up 25 percent. About
half of this increase was due to a $20 million increase in
expenditures for information technology and systems. Capital
expenditures are expected to approximate $200 million for 2001.

Capital contributions to the Financial Services Group were
$10 million. Dividends received from the Financial Services
Group were $110 million.

Financing Activities

In the fourth quarter 1999, the Board of Directors authorized
the repurchase of up to 6.0 million shares of the company’s
common stock. This repurchase was completed during the
third quarter 2000. In August 2000, the Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of an additional 2.5 million
shares. During the year, 5.1 million shares were repurchased
at a cost of $250 million. At year-end 2000, an aggregate
of 6.75 million shares had been repurchased since the
inception of these programs at a cost of $350 million.

In the third quarter 2000, new bank credit facilities were
arranged including a three year revolving credit agreement
and a five year term loan. These facilities may be used to
refund the $202 million of long-term debt scheduled to
mature in 2001 or to fund other needs. Dividends paid
were $65 million or $1.28 per share.

As required by its joint venture agreement, the company
contributed its Newport, Indiana, medium mill and
associated debt of $50 million to the venture to maintain
its 50 percent ownership interest. In connection with
assuming control of the fiber-cement joint venture, the
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company obtained control over $53 million of assets that
were subject to $53 million of debt. A majority of these
assets were subsequently leased to a third party.

Cash Equivalents

At year-end 1999, $50 million of the proceeds from the sale of
the bleached paperboard operation was temporarily invested
in cash equivalents. These were used during the year in
investing and financing activities.

Other
The parent company has sufficient liquidity and capital
resources to meet its anticipated needs.

The Financial Services Group

The principal sources of cash for the Financial Services
Group are operating cash flows, deposits and borrowings.
The Financial Services Group uses these funds to invest in
earning assets, generally loans and securities.

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operations was $217 million, down 43 percent.
The decrease in the change in mortgage loans held for sale
was partially offset by an increase in earnings and a decrease
in the change in cash for mortgage loans serviced for others.

Investing Activities

Loans and securities increased $1.8 billion. The increase in
loans and securities was primarily attributable to increased
construction and development and commercial and business
lending activities and purchases of securities.

Capital expenditures were $34 million, and cash paid for
acquisitions was $20 million.

Financing Activities

Deposits increased $857 million, and borrowings increased
$1.1 billion. Borrowings consist primarily of advances from
the Federal Home Loan Bank and securities sold under
repurchase agreements and resulted from funding needs as
the growth in earning assets outpaced the growth in deposits.

A subsidiary of the savings bank that qualifies as a real estate
investment trust (REIT) sold $80 million of preferred stock
during December 2000 in a private placement. At year-end
2000, an aggregate of $305 million of subsidiary preferred
stock was outstanding.

Dividends, net of capital contributions, paid to the parent
company totaled $100 million.
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Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents increased $87 million to $320 million.

Other

The Financial Services Group has sufficient liquidity and
capital resources to meet its anticipated needs. At year end,
the savings bank exceeded all applicable regulatory capital
requirements. The parent company expects to maintain the
savings bank’s capital at a level that exceeds the minimum
required for designation as “well capitalized” under the capital
adequacy regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision. From
time to time, the parent company may make capital
contributions to the savings bank or receive dividends from
the savings bank. During the year, the parent company
contributed $10 million to the savings bank and received
$110 million in dividends from the savings bank.

Selected financial and regulatory capital data for the savings
bank follows:

At year end 2000 1999

(in millions)

Balance sheet data

Total assets........................... $ 14,885 $ 12,892
Total deposits....................... 10,088 9,329
Shareholder’s equity............. 931 857
Savings Bank ~ Regulatory

Actual Minimum

Regulatory capital ratios

Tangible capital................... 7.8% 2.0%
Leverage capital .................. 7.8% 4.0%
Risk-based capital ............... 10.3% 8.0%

Of the $305 million in subsidiary preferred stock outstanding at
year-end 2000, $288 million qualifies as regulatory capital.
The remaining $17 million is available for inclusion in
regulatory capital as the savings bank increases its total
non-preferred core capital.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The company is committed to protecting the health and
welfare of its employees, the public and the environment,
and strives to maintain compliance with all state and federal
environmental regulations. When constructing new facilities
or modernizing existing facilities, the company uses state of
the art technology for controlling air and water emissions.
These forward-looking programs should minimize the effect
that changing regulations have on capital expenditures for
environmental compliance.
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The company has been designated as a potentially responsible
party at nine Superfund sites, excluding sites as to which
the company’s records disclose no involvement or as to
which the company’s potential liability has been finally
determined. In addition, other claims and proceedings have
been asserted against the company seeking remediation of
alleged environmental impairments at four facilities. At year
end 2000, the company estimated that the undiscounted
total costs it could probably incur for the remediation and
toxic tort actions at Superfund sites and other sites to be
about $4 million, which has been accrued.

The company utilized landfill operations to dispose of
non-hazardous waste at three paperboard and two building
product mill operations. At year-end 2000, the company
estimated that the undiscounted total costs it could probably
incur to ensure proper closure of these landfills over the
next twenty-five years to be about $15 million, which is
being accrued over the estimated lives of the landfills.

On April 15, 1998, the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) issued the Cluster Rule regulations governing
air and water emissions from the pulp and paper industry.
The company has spent approximately $11 million toward
Cluster Rule compliance through 2000, and will expend
an additional $2 million to satisfy requirements relating
to the initial compliance deadline of April 15, 2001. Future
expenditures for environmental control facilities will depend
on additional Maximum Available Control Technology
(MACT) I regulations for hazardous air pollutants relating
to pulp mill combustion sources and the upcoming
plywood and composite wood products MACT proposal,
as well as changing laws and regulations and technological
advances. Given these uncertainties, the company estimates
that capital expenditures for environmental purposes during
the period 2001 through 2003 will average approximately
$9 million each year.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION

Inflation has had minimal effects on operating results the
last three years, except for the increase in energy costs
during 2000. During 2000, energy costs were up approx-
imately $17 million compared with 1999. Energy costs
began rising during the second quarter 2000 and have
continued to rise throughout the year. In some instances,
the company elected to curtail production at certain of
its manufacturing facilities rather than pay significantly
higher energy prices. The company expects this trend of
higher energy costs to continue. The company is exploring
alternative arrangements and fuel sources in an effort to
contain energy costs.



12 Temple-Inland

The parent company’s fixed assets, including timber and
timberlands, are reflected at their historical costs. At
current replacement costs, depreciation expense and the
cost of timber harvested would be significantly higher
than amounts reported.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
AND PROSPECTIVE CHANGES IN ESTIMATES

During 2000, the company adopted the consensus of the
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 00-10, Accounting for
Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs. This consensus stated
that shipping and handling costs could not be offset
against related revenues. Shipping and handling costs have
been reclassified and are now included as a component of
cost of sales instead of as a reduction of revenue. This
reclassification had no effect on net income.

Beginning January 2001, the company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This statement
requires that derivative instruments be recognized on the
balance sheet at fair value with the changes in their fair
value reflected in net income or other comprehensive
income, depending upon the classification of the derivative
instrument. The company uses derivative instruments to
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hedge risks, including those associated with changes in
product pricing, manufacturing cost and interest rates. The
company does not use derivatives for trading purposes.
The cumulative effect of adoption will be to reduce first
quarter 2001 net income by $2 million. Additionally, as
permitted by this Statement, the Financial Services Group
changed the designation of its portfolio of held-to-maturity
securities, which are carried at unamortized cost, to available-
for-sale, which are carried at fair value. As a result, the
carrying value of these securities was adjusted to their
fair value with a corresponding after tax reduction of $16
million in other comprehensive income, a component of
shareholders’ equity.

Beginning January 2001, the company began computing
depreciation of certain production equipment using revised
useful lives. These revisions ranged from a reduction of
several years to a lengthening of up to five years and were
based on an assessment performed by the manufacturing
groups, which indicated that revisions of the estimated useful
lives of certain production equipment were warranted. The
maximum estimated useful lives for production equipment
is 25 years. As a result of this change in the estimated useful
lives, the company expects to reduce its annual depreci-
ation expense between $25 million to $30 million per year
beginning in 2001 and continuing for several years thereafter.

COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

2000 1999
Price Range Price Range
High Low Dividends High Low Dividends
First quarter....................coo $ 67 Y6 $ 43 % $ 0.32 $ 67 % $ 56 76 $ 0.32
Second quarter... 57 %2 40 %6 0.32 77 72 61 ¥ 0.32
Third quarter...............ccccoooi, 47 % 37 Y6 0.32 73 76 58 0.32
Fourth quarter......................coo 55 %2 34 78 0.32 66 Y6 53 8 0.32
For the year...............ccccooi. $ 67 e $ 3478 $ 128 $ 77 7% $ 53% $ 1.28
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STATISTICAL AND OTHER DATA (a)

2000 Annual Report

Temple-Inland 13

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Revenues
Paper Group...........cooooiiiiii $ 2,089 $ 1,869 $ 1,707
Building Products Group
Pine lumber.................... $ 218 $ 239 $ 219
PLywood ......ooiiiiii i 52 70 63
Particleboard...................cc.cooo i 230 189 158
Medium density fiberboard ... 90 66 10
Gypsum wallboard ... 98 162 130
Fiberboard ... 67 75 69
Other. .. 73 22 11
Total Building Products...............ocooiiiiiiiiiii, $ 828 $ 823 $ 660
Financial Services Group
Savings bank ... $ 1121 $ 841 $ 743
Mortgage banking 92 131 153
Real eState ............oocoiiiiiii e 117 m 107
Insurance brokerage ................ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiii 39 33 33
Total Financial Services.....................oocooviiiiiiiiii $ 1,369 $ 1,116 $ 1,036
Unit Sales
Paper Group
Corrugated packaging, thousands of tons (5)........................ 2,685 2,802 2,519
Building Products Group
Pine lumber, mbf.......................o 666 618 603
Plywood, msf............oooiiiiiii 258 296 289
Particleboard, msf.......................ocoo 676 574 518
Medium density fiberboard, msf....................... 244 187 35
Gypsum wallboard, msf.................. 678 890 858
Fiberboard, msf.......................ooooi 368 439 423
Financial Services Group
Assets at year end
Savings bank ... $14,885 $ 12,892 $ 11,947
Mortgage banking ..............ccoocooiiiiiiiiii 319 363 442
Real eState ............occoiiiiiiii o 321 313 295
Insurance brokerage ................ccocooiiiiiiiiiiiii 42 33 32
BIMINations. ........ooooiiiii e (243) (280) (340)
Total Financial Services assets .....................ccccoovieiiion.. $ 15,324 $ 13,321 $ 12,376
Equity at year end
Savings bank ... $ 931 $ 87 $ 559
Mortgage banking ... 78 90 84
Real €State ............oocoiiiiiiiiii e 56 54 48
Insurance brokerage ... 28 22 17
Total Financial Services equity .............cccccooiiiiiiinn. $ 1,093 $ 1,023 $ 708

(a) Revenues and unit sales do not include joint venture operations.

(b) Includes boxes sold and open market sales of linerboard.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE bank’s assets at year-end 2000 have adjustable rates, this E a SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK risk is significantly mitigated. However, the savings bank
is also subject to prepayment risk inherent in a portion of E a For the year 2000 1999 1% 1927 1%
Interest Rate Risk its single-family adjustable-rate mortgage-backed assets.
The company is subject to interest rate risk from the A substantial portion of the savings bank’s investment in E a Revenues (a)
utilization of financial instruments such as adjustable-rate  adjustable-rate mortgage-backed assets have annual and $ 2,089 $ 1,869 $ 1,707 $ 1,768 $ 1,830
debt and other borrowings, as well as the lending and  Jifetime caps that subject the savings bank to interest rate E a 828 823 660 662 604
deposit-gathering activities of the Financial Services Group.  risk should rates rise above certain levels. From time to 1,369 1,116 1,036 923 8oo
The following table illustrates the estimated effect on pre-tax  time, to optimize net interest income while maintaining E a $ 4,286 $ 3,808 $ 3,403 $ 3353 $ 3,234
income of immediate, parallel and sustained shifts in interest  acceptable levels of interest rate and liquidity risk, the savings
rates for the subsequent 12-month period at year-end 2000,  bank may enter into various interest rate contracts to better E a
with comparative information at year-end 1999: match assets and liabilities. $ 205 $ 103 $ 39 s (s4) s 120
68 174 112 131 102
Change in Interest Rates fnerease (Decremz)olZoI neome before 173;;5 Additionally, the fair value of the Financial Services Group’s E a 189 138 154 132 63 (b)
(in millions) mortgage servicing rights (estimated at $305 million at year- E a $ 462 $ 415 $_ 305 $ 209 $ 28
end 2000) is also affected by changes in interest rates. The
$ (7) $ (1) company estimates that a 1 percent decline in interest rates E a In.come ‘from continl.ling operations.............. $ 1950 s 191 $ 88 $ 59 $ 155
s (1) s - from current levels would decrease the fair value of the Dlscontlr.lued operations....... s - (92) (21) (8) (22)
$ - $ - mortgage servicing rights by approximately $48 million. E a Cun?ulatlve effect of accounting change.......... - - () - -
s (1) s (1) Net income $ 195 $ 99 $ 64 $ 51 $ 133
$ (13) $ (16)  Foreign Currency Risk E a . _
The company’s exposure to foreign currency fluctuations Capital expend.ltures:
on its financial instruments is not material because most E a I\{Ianuffacturlng ............................................... $ 223 $ 178 $ 157 $ 213 $ 250
The change in exposure to interest rate risk from year of these instruments are denominated in U.S. dollars. Flnar.1c1.al Services. ... e 34 26 39 18 15
end 1999 is primarily due to increases in the company’s E = Depreciation a.nd depletion:
adjustable-rate debt obligations and growth in the Commodity Price Risk Manuf:.acturlng. ............................................... 198 200 192 187 178
Financial Services Group loan and mortgage-backed From time to time, the company uses commodity derivative E a Fn.lanc1al Services....... e 18 17 14 13 12
securities portfolios, funded by short-term borrowings instruments to mitigate its exposure to changes in product Earnlr?gs per share—continuing operations:
and growth in deposits. pricing and manufacturing costs. These instruments cover E a Ba.tsm """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 3.83 3-45 1.60 1.05 279
a small portion of the company’s volume and range in D1.luted .................... S 3.83 3.43 1.59 1.04 2.79
The operations of the Financial Services Group’s savings  duration from three months to three years. Based on the E a Earnlr?gs per share—net income (e):
bank are subject to interest rate risk to the extent that fair value of these instruments at year-end 2000, the Ba.tsm """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 3.83 179 1.16 091 2:39
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities potential loss in fair value resulting from a hypothetical E a .D.ﬂuted ---------------------------------------------------------- 3.83 1.78 1.15 0.90 2.39
mature or reprice at different times or in differing 10 percent change in the underlying commodity prices D 1v.1dends per common share : 128 1.28 128 128 1.24
amounts. Because approximately 89 percent of the savings ~ would not be significant. E a We;gh‘ted average shares outstanding: ] ) ]
ASIC. ... 50.9 55. 55. 56.0 55.5
E a Diluted.............cocooooiiiii 50.9 55.8 55.9 56.2 55.6
Common shares outstanding at year end........... 49.2 54.2 55.6 56.3 55.4
E a At year end
E a Total @ssets............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiieie $18,142 $ 16,186 $ 15,868 $ 14,257 $ 12,858
Long-term debt:
E a Parent COMPANY............coocoooiiiiiiiiiiiii, 1,381 1,253 1,501 1,356 1,440
Financial Services................................o..... 210 212 210 167 133
E a Stock issued by subsidiaries.............................. 306 226 225 150 -
Shareholders’” equity...............ccocooiiiiii 1,833 1,927 1,998 2,045 2,015
E a Ratio of total debt to total
capitalization—Parent company...................... 43% 39% 43% 40% 42%
E— 3
E a (a) Restated to reflect the reclassification of shipping and handling costs from revenues to cost of sales. (b) 1996 includes a one-time assessment of $44 million to
recapitalize the Savings Association Insurance Fund. (c) 2000 includes a pre-tax special charge of $15 million. (d) 1998 includes a pre-tax special charge of $47
E a million. (e) 1998 includes $.06 per share charge from cumulative effect of accounting change. 1999, 1998, 1997 and 1996 include a loss from discontinued operation
of $1.65, $.38, $.14 and $.40 per share, respectively.
E— 3
E— 3
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SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Parent Company (Temple-Inland Inc.)

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Net REVENUES.......coiiiiiee e $ 2,917 $ 2,692 $ 2,367
Costs and Expenses
Cost Of SAlES ... 2,441 2,180 1,982
Selling and administrative ... 236 265 262
Special charge 15 - 47
2,692 2,445 2,291
225 247 76
Financial Services Earnings..............cccooooiiiviiieiiiiiiiiiieeeie, 189 138 154
Operating INCoOMe.........cooooiiiiiiiiiee e 414 385 230
INtereSt—1et ... (104) (95) (78)
Other. ... 10 16 6
Income From Continuing Operations Before Taxes...................... 320 306 158
TNCOME TAXES - oo (125) (115) (70)
Income From Continuing Operations.......................ccooieeeeiiiinnnn. 195 191 88
Discontinued operations ... - (92) (21)
Income Before Accounting Change.... 195 99 67
Effect of accounting change ... - - (3)
Net INCOME . ..o $ 195 $ 99 $ 64

See the notes to the parent company summarized financial statements.
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SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEETS
Parent Company (Temple-Inland Inc.)
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At year end 2000 1999
(in millions)
Assets
Current Assets
G $ 2 $ 51
Receivables, less allowances of $10 in 2000 and $9 iN1999...................................... 320 328
Inventories:
Work in process and finished goods. ... 61 71
Raw material. ..o 192 216
253 287
Prepaid expenses and other.. 25 16
TOtal CUTTEIT ASSELS ........oiii ittt 600 682
Investment in Temple-Inland Financial Services ... 1,093 1,023
Property and Equipment
Land and buildings...................oi 452 464
Machinery and eqUiPIMent ..............ocooiiiiiiiii i 2,734 2,743
Construction M PrOGIESS.............ooiiiiiiiiii ittt 160 102
Less allowances for depreciation ..................ocooiiiiiiiiiiii (1,822 (1,759)
1,524 1,550
Timber and timberlands—less depletion. 503 502
Total property and eqUipMent ................ocooiiiiiiiiiii 2,027 2,052
OMRET ASSEES . ......ouiiiii e 227 184
Ol A S Ot S e $ 3,947 $ 3,941
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable. ... $ 112 $ 156
Accrued expenses and other ... 127 186
Employee compensation and benefits 62 38
Current portion of long-term debt ... 2 1
Total current liabilities. ... 303 381
Long-Term Debt. ... ..o 1,381 1,253
Deferred INCOme TAXES............c.cccoiiiiii i 276 226
Postretirement Bemefits .. ...t 142 143
Other Liabilities................................. 12 11
Shareholders’ Equity 1,833 1,927
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .....................ccc $ 3,947 $ 3,941

See the notes to the parent company summarized financial statements.
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SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Parent Company (Temple-Inland Inc.)

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Cash Provided By (Used For) Operations
Net INCOIME ... $ 195 99 $ 64
Adjustments:
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation..................... - 77 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change.......................... - - 3
Special charge...............ooooiiiii 15 - 47
Depreciation and depletion ... 198 200 192
Deferred taxes...................cooiiiii 52 10 17
Unremitted earnings from financial services .................... (147) (121) (127)
Dividends from financial services... 110 70 44
ReCEIVADIES ... 9 (74) (11)
16 (4) 2
(84) 42 (16)
- 23 63
8 (4) 14
372 318 292
Cash Provided By (Used For) Investments
Capital expenditures...................cccocoooiiiiiiiiiiee, (223) (178) (157)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations .................... - 576 -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment.................... 17 55 6
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and joint ventures .......... (18) (49) (123)
Capital contributions to financial services ........................... (10) (279) (44)
(234) 125 (318)
Cash Provided By (Used For) Financing
Additions to debt....................... 260 312 319
Payments of debt...............ooooiiiiii (134) (560) (175)
Purchase of stock for treasury...................oooooi (250) (100) (48)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders................................ (65) (71) (71)
2 12 3
(187) (407) 28
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............... (49) 36 2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year...................... 51 15 13
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ............................... $ 2 51 $ 15

See the notes to the parent company summarized financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY (TEMPLE-INLAND INC.)
SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The summarized financial statements include the accounts of
Temple-Inland Inc. and its manufacturing subsidiaries (the
parent company). The net assets invested in Temple-Inland
Financial Services are subject, in varying degrees, to regu-
latory rules and restrictions. Accordingly, the investment
in Temple-Inland Financial Services is reflected in the
summarized financial statements on the equity basis.
Related earnings, however, are presented before tax to be
consistent with the consolidated financial statements. All
material intercompany amounts and transactions have
been eliminated. These financial statements should be read
in conjunction with the Temple-Inland Inc. consolidated
financial statements and the Temple-Inland Financial
Services summarized financial statements.

Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s classifications.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.

The cost of inventories amounting to $93 million at year-
end 2000 and $85 million at year-end 1999 was determined
by the last-in, first-out method (LIFO). The cost of the
remaining inventories was determined principally by the
average cost method, which approximates the first-in,
first-out method (FIFO).

If the FIFO method of accounting had been applied to those
inventories that were determined by the LIFO method,
inventories would have been $28 million and $21 million
more than reported at year-end 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost minus
allowances for depreciation and depletion. Depreciation is
generally provided on the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives as follows:

Classification Estimated Useful Lives

Buildings...........cocoooiiiiiii 15 t0 40 yrs
Machinery and equipment:
Manufacturing and

production equipment................. 3 to 25 yrs
Transportation equipment 3 to 10 yrs
Office and other equipment.............. 210 10 yrs

Certain machinery and production equipment is depreciated
based on operating hours or units of production because
depreciation occurs primarily through use rather than
through elapsed time.

The parent company has completed an assessment of the
estimated useful lives of certain production equipment
and believes that a revision of these estimated useful
lives is warranted. Accordingly, beginning January 2001,
the parent company will begin computing depreciation
of certain production equipment using revised estimated
useful lives. These revisions ranged from a reduction of
several years to a lengthening of up to five years. As
a result of this change in estimated useful lives, the parent
company expects to reduce its annual depreciation
expense between $25 million to $30 million per year for
the next several years.

Timber and timberlands are stated at cost, minus accu-
mulated cost of timber harvested. Cost attributed to standing
timber is charged against income as timber is harvested at
rates determined annually, based on the relationship
of unamortized timber costs to the estimated volume of
recoverable timber. The costs of seedlings and reforestation
of timberlands are capitalized.

The cost of additions and betterments is capitalized, and
the cost of maintenance and repairs is expensed.

Start-up Costs and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
Effective with the beginning of the year 1998, start-up costs
are expensed as incurred, instead of being deferred and
amortized over a five-year period. The cumulative effect of
applying this change was a charge of $3 million, net of tax
benefit of $2 million, and was recognized as of the beginning
of the year 1998.

Environmental Liabilities

When environmental assessments or cleanups are probable
and the costs can be reasonably estimated, remediation
liabilities are recorded on an undiscounted basis and are
adjusted as further information develops or circumstances
change. The estimated undiscounted cost to close and
remediate company-operated landfills are accrued over the
estimated useful life of the landfill.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized upon passage of title to the customer.
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New Accounting Pronouncements
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During the fourth quarter 2000, the parent company adopted the consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 0o-10,

Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs, that shipping and handling costs cannot be netted against revenues.

Accordingly, for all periods presented, shipping and handling costs have been reclassified and are now included as

a component of costs of sales instead of as a reduction of revenues. This reclassification had no effect on net income.

NOTE B | LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

At year end 2000 1999
(in millions)
Commercial paper, other short-term borrowings, and

borrowing under bank credit agreements

—average interest rate was 6.55% in 2000 and 5.71% N 1999 ............................. $ 90 $ -
9.0% Notes payable dUe 2001................ociiiiiiiiii i 200 200
8.125% to 8.38% Notes payable due 2006......................ooiiiii 100 100
7.25% Notes payable dUe 2004..............cociiiiiiiii 100 100
8.25% Debentures dUe 2022................cccoiiiiii i 150 150
6.75% Notes payable dU€ 2009...............ooiiiiiiiiiiii i 300 300
Private placement debt

—6.59% to 7.02% notes due 2000 through 2007.................cooo 118 188
Revenue bonds due 2007 through 2028

—average interest rate was 4.77% in 2000 and 4.58% in 1999............................. 114 19
Term note due 2005

—average interest rate was 7.89% 1N 2000 ..............ccooiiiiiiiiiii 100 -
Other indebtedness due through 2006

—average interest rate was 7.11% in 2000 and 5.96% iN 1999.............................. 111 97

1,383 1,254

Less:

Current portion of long-term debt....................... (2) (1)

$ 1,381 $ 1,253

At year-end 2000, the parent company had credit agree-
ments with banks totaling $738 million with final maturities
at various dates in 2002 and 2003 that support commercial
paper and other short-term borrowings. Commercial paper
and other short-term borrowings totaling $90 million
and current maturities of medium-term notes totaling
$200 million are classified as long-term debt in accordance
with the parent company’s intent and ability to refinance
such obligations on a long-term basis.

Stated maturities of the parent company’s long-term debt
during the next five years are as follows (in millions):
2001—$202; 2002—$68; 2003—$159; 2004—$101; 2005—$139;
2006 and thereafter—$714.

Capitalized construction period interest in 2000, 1999 and
1998 was $4 million, $2 million and $1 million, respectively,
and is deducted from interest expense. Parent company
interest paid during 2000, 1999 and 1998 was $108 million,
$117 million and $101 million, respectively.
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NOTE C | JOINT VENTURES
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The parent company’s significant joint venture investments at year-end 2000 are:

Del-Tin Fiber LLC—a 50 percent owned venture that produces medium density fiberboard in El Dorado, Arkansas.

Standard Gypsum LP—-a 50 percent owned venture that produces gypsum wallboard at facilities in McQueeny, Texas,

and Cumberland City, Tennessee.

Premier Boxboard Ltd.—a 50 percent owned venture that produces corrugating medium and gypsum facing paper in

Newport, Indiana.

Combined summarized financial information for these joint ventures follows:

At year end 2000 1999
(in millions)

Current assets ... $ 35 $ 33

TOtAl @SSEES ... ..o 379 213

Current Habilities ..o 16 20

Long-term deDt.........ooiiiiii i 225 145

BQUItY oo 138 48

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)

NEE TOVENUES ... $ 152 $ 86 $ 46

Operating iNCOME................ooiiiiiiiii 4 9 1

Net income (10SS).......ooovooi e (9) 1 (2)
Parent company’s equity in net income (loss).......................... (2) (1) 1

The parent company provides marketing and management
services to these ventures. Fees for such services aggregated
$5 million, $3 million, and $2 million during 2000, 1999 and
1998, respectively, and are reported as a reduction of cost of
sales and selling expense. The parent company purchases,
at market rates, finished products from these joint ventures.
These purchases aggregated $29 million during 2000.

In connection with the operations of these joint ventures,
the parent company has guaranteed certain obligations and
letters of credit aggregating $94 million at year-end 2000.

Near the end of second quarter 2000, the parent company
transferred ownership of its corrugating medium mill in
Newport, Indiana, and associated debt of $50 million to
Premier Boxboard Ltd. This was done as part of its agreement

to maintain a 50 percent interest in the venture. The fair
value of the assets contributed exceeded their carrying
value. This difference will be recognized in earnings over
the life of the venture. In the third quarter 2000, the venture
completed its conversion of the mill so that it could produce
lightweight gypsum facing paper as well as corrugating
medium. For a period of twelve months after the transfer,
the parent company is obligated to purchase, at market
rates, all of the corrugating medium produced by the venture
that meets the parent company’s specifications.

During the third quarter 2000, the parent company decided to
exit its fiber-cement joint venture. See Note D for information
about this transaction and a related special charge. Operating
losses of this venture were $13 million for the nine months
ended September 2000 and $14 million for the year 1999.
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NOTE D | SPECIAL CHARGES AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the third quarter 2000, the parent company decided
to exit its fiber-cement joint venture by assuming control
and leasing most of the venture’s assets to a third party.
As a result, the parent company obtained control over
$53 million of assets, which were subject to $53 million of
liabilities, and recorded a $15 million special charge that
includes $11 million for assets excluded from the lease
agreement that will be disposed of and $4 million of other
costs. Following a six-month ramp-up period, the lease
agreement provides for payments of $3.4 million per year
over the balance of the 19% year lease term.

During the third quarter 1999, the parent company decided
to discontinue its bleached paperboard operation.
Accordingly, the results of the bleached paperboard oper-
ation have been classified as discontinued operations, and
prior periods have been restated. The bleached paperboard
mill was sold in December 1999 for approximately
$576 million in cash and the assumption of $82 million of
debt. The eucalyptus fiber project in Mexico, which was to
be a source of hardwood fiber for the bleached paperboard
mill, is expected to be sold during 2001 at a price that
approximates its carrying value.

Information related to the discontinued operations follows:

For the year 1999 1998

(in millions)

Revenues................ooooo $ 381 $ 376
Loss from operations................ (21) (21)
Loss on disposal...................... (71) -

Interest expense of $28 million per year was allocated to
the discontinued operations, based on debt allocated to the
operations. The loss from operations is net of income tax
benefits of $13 million in both 1999 and 1998. The loss on
disposal is net of income tax benefits of $44 million.
Included in the loss on disposal are estimated operating
losses of the eucalyptus fiber project through the antici-
pated date of disposal of $2 million.
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In connection with the sale of the bleached paperboard mill,
the parent company has agreed, subject to certain limitations,
to indemnify the purchaser from certain liabilities and
contingencies associated with the company’s operation and
ownership of the mill. The parent company does not believe
that the resolution of these matters will have a material
adverse effect on its operations or financial position.

During the fourth quarter of 1998, the parent company
recorded a special charge of $47 million. The charge included
$13 million related to work force reductions in the Paper
Group, $24 million related to asset impairments principally
related to the Paper Group’s Argentine operation, and
$10 million of asset impairments related to the Building
Products Group. Substantially all of the charge for work
force reductions was utilized or paid in 1999. The Argentine
operation was sold during the second quarter of 1999, for
its carrying value. The sale proceeds included $1 million in
cash and $11 million in promissory notes. The promissory
notes were subsequently sold with recourse. Of the remaining
$14 million in asset impairments, $8 million was for manu-
facturing assets abandoned in 1998, and $6 million was for
property and equipment still in use.

NOTE E | COMMITMENTS

The parent company leases timberlands, equipment and
facilities under operating lease agreements. Future
minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable
operating leases having a remaining term in excess of one
year, exclusive of related expenses are as follows (in millions):
2001—$29; 2002—$24; 2003—$21; 2004 —$19; 2005—$17; 2006
and thereafter—s$272.

Total rent expense was $46 million, $34 million and $30
million during 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

In connection with its joint venture operations, the parent
company has guaranteed certain obligations and letters of
credit aggregating $94 million at year-end 2000.

The parent company has unconditional purchase obligations,
principally for gypsum and timber, aggregating $36 million
at year-end 2000.
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SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Financial Services Group
For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Interest Income
Loans receivable and mortgage loans held for sale................ $ 884 $ 705 $ 583
Mortgage-backed and other securities available-for-sale....... 143 64 62
Mortgage-backed and other securities held-to-maturity....... 54 62 88
Other earning assets ...............cccoccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 8 5 5
Total interest income 1,089 836 738
Interest Expense
DEPOSIES ...t 493 379 357
Borrowed funds........................o 207 158 137
Total interest expense... 700 537 494
Net Interest Income...............ooooiiiiiiiiiii e 389 299 244
Provision for loan losses.............................ccoooo (39) (38) (1)
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses.................. 350 261 243
Noninterest Income
84 115 135
196 165 163
280 280 298
177 166 174
246 222 199
423 388 373
Income Before Taxes And Minority Interest................................ 207 153 168
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries.......... (18) (15) (14)
Income Before TAXES .............c.ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiice 189 138 154
TIICOINE EAXS ..ot (42) (17) (27)
Net INCOME ..o $ 147 $ 121 $ 127

See the notes to Financial Services Group summarized financial statements.
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SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEETS

Financial Services Group

At year end 2000 1999
(in millions)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents........................oii $ 320 $ 233
Mortgage loans held for sale 232 252
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
of $118 in 2000 and $113 IN 1999 ... 10,411 9,296
Mortgage-backed and other securities available-for-sale................................ 2,415 1,431
Mortgage-backed and other securities held-to-maturity....................... 864 1,061
OtRET @SSES ..o 1,082 1,048
Total Assets $15,324 $ 13,321
Liabilities
DIEPOSIES. ... $ 9,828 $ 9,027
Federal Home Loan Bank advances....................................................... 2,869 2,403
Securities sold under repurchase agreements.......................ccocooiiiiii 595 -
Other DOTTOWINGS. ..ottt 210 212
Other Habilities ...............ooi 423 430
Stock issued by subsidiaries...................ocoiiiiiiii 306 226
Total Liabilities. ..................ooo oo 14,231 12,298
Shareholder’s EQUITY ............c.ccooiiii it 1,093 1,023
Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s EQUIty....................c.cooiiiiiiiiiii $15,324 $ 13,321

See the notes to the Financial Services Group summarized financial statements.
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SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Financial Services Group
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For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Cash Provided By (Used For) Operations
Net INCOME. ... 147 $ 121 $ 127
Adjustments:
Amortization, depreciation and accretion....................... 52 62 108
Mortgage loans held for sale.......................o 20 369 (183)
Collections and remittances on loans serviced
for others, Net............ccoo (32) (251) 129
OtheT. ..o 30 82 (86)
217 383 95
Cash Provided By (Used For) Investments
Purchases of securities available-for-sale............................. (1,036) (294) (208)
Maturities of securities available-for-sale 338 279 300
Sales of securities available-for-sale.................................... - 145 53
Maturities and redemptions of securities
held-to-maturity...............ooooiiiii 192 351 349
Loans originated or acquired,
net of principal collected ......................ccococoiiiiiii (1,506) (1,163) (1,852)
Sales Of lOanS...............ooi 253 299 16
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $10 in 2000
and $29 1N 1999 ..........ooiiiii o (20) (108) -
Capital expenditures...................ccooooiiiiiiiiiiiiee, (34) (26) (39)
OUNeT. oo (59) (17) 12
(1,872) (534) (1,369)
Cash Provided By (Used For) Financing
Net increase (decrease) in deposits..........................ccocooo.. 857 808 (36)
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and
short-term borrowings, net....................c.ococoooii. 1,071 (121) 788
Additions to debt........................... 37 35 770
(178) (775) (251)
8o 1 75
10 279 44
(110) (70) (44)
(25) (2) (18)
1,742 155 1,328
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents.............................. 87 4 54
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year........................ 233 229 175
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.............................. $ 320 $ 233 $ 229

See the notes to Financial Services Group summarized financial statements.
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NOTES TO SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Temple-Inland Financial Services Group (group) summarized
financial statements include savings bank, mortgage banking,
real estate and insurance brokerage operations. All material
intercompany amounts and transactions have been elimi-
nated. Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s classification. These financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the Temple-Inland Inc.
(the company) consolidated financial statements.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and held for sale are carried at
the lower of cost or estimated market value in the aggregate.
Net unrealized losses are recognized in a valuation allowance
by charges to income.

Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses
Loans receivable are stated at unpaid net principal balances
minus any allowance for loan losses. Interest on loans
receivable is credited to income as earned. The accrual of
interest ceases when collection of principal or interest
becomes doubtful. When interest accrual ceases, uncollected
interest previously credited to income is reversed. Certain
loan fees and direct loan origination costs are deferred.
These net fees or costs, as well as premiums and discounts
on loans, are amortized to income using the interest
method over the remaining period to contractual maturity
and adjusted for anticipated prepayments. Any unamortized
loan fees or costs, premiums, or discounts are taken to
income in the event a loan is sold or repaid.

The allowance for loan losses is increased by charges to
income and by the portion of the purchase price related to
credit risk on bulk purchases of loans and on acquisitions.
The allowance is decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries.
Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the
allowance is based on the group’s past loan loss experience,
known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations
that may affect the borrowers’ ability to repay, estimated value
of any underlying collateral, and current economic conditions.

Loans receivable are assigned a rating to distinguish levels of
credit risk and loan quality. These risk ratings are categorized
as pass or criticized grade with the resultant allowance for
loan losses based on this distinction. Certain loan portfolios
are considered to be performance based and are graded by
analyzing performance through assessment of delinquency
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status. The allowance for loan losses is comprised of specific
allowances for criticized graded loans, general allowances
for pass graded loans and an unallocated allowance based on
analysis of other economic factors.

Specific allowances established on the outstanding principal
balance of criticized graded loans range from 5 percent to
40 percent on Substandard classified loans, 35 percent to 70
percent on Doubtful classified loans and 100 percent on
Loss classified loans. These allowance percentages are based
in part on estimated cash flows to be received on the loans
or estimated market values of the underlying collateral.
The group uses general allowances for pools of loans with
relatively similar risks based on management’s assessment
of homogenous attributes, such as product types, markets,
aging and collateral. The group uses information on historic
trends in delinquencies, charge-offs and recoveries to
identify unfavorable trends. The analysis considers adverse
trends in the migration of classifications to be an early
warning of potential problems that would indicate a need
to increase loss allowances over historic levels.

The unallocated allowance for loan losses is determined
based on management’s assessment of general economic
conditions as well as specific economic factors in individual
markets. The evaluation of the appropriate level of unallo-
cated allowance considers current risk factors that may not
be reflected in the historical trends used to determine the
allowance on criticized and pass graded loans. These factors
may include inherent delays in obtaining information
regarding a borrower’s financial condition or changes in
their unique business conditions; the judgmental nature of
individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the
interpretation of economic trends; volatility of economic
conditions affecting the identification and estimation of
losses for larger non-homogeneous loans; and the sensitivity
of assumptions used to establish general allowances for
homogenous groups of loans. In addition, the unallocated
allowance recognizes that ultimate knowledge of the loan
portfolios may be incomplete.

Mortgage-Backed and Other Securities

The group determines the appropriate classification of
mortgage-backed and other securities at the time of purchase
and confirms the designation of these debt securities as of
each balance sheet date. Debt securities are classified as
held-to-maturity and stated at amortized cost when the
group has both the intent and ability to hold the securities
to maturity. Otherwise, debt securities and marketable
equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are
stated at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses, net
of tax, reported as a component of shareholder’s equity.
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The cost of securities classified as held-to-maturity or
available-for-sale is adjusted for amortization of premiums
and accretion of discounts by a method that approximates
the interest method over the estimated lives of the securities.
Should any such assets be sold, gains and losses are
recognized based on the specific-identification method.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The operations of Guaranty Bank (Guaranty) are subject
to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
mature or reprice at different times or in differing amounts.
To maintain acceptable levels of interest rate and liquidity
risk, Guaranty from time to time enters into various types
of interest rate contracts for purposes other than trading.

The net amount payable or receivable on interest rate contracts
is recorded as an adjustment to interest income or expense.
Premiums paid for interest rate contracts, net of premiums
received for those sold, are included in the carrying value of
the related interest-earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities,
and amortized as an adjustment to the yield of the designated
assets or liabilities over the contract periods.

Real Estate

Real estate consists primarily of land and commercial
properties held for development and sale, although certain
properties are held for the production of income. Interest on
indebtedness and property taxes during the development
period, as well as improvements and other development
costs, are generally capitalized. The cost of land sales is
determined using the relative sales value method. Real estate
also includes properties acquired through loan foreclosure.

Real estate held for future development and real estate projects
being developed are evaluated for impairment in accordance
with the recognition and measurement provisions governing
long-lived assets to be held and used in operations. Real
estate projects that are substantially completed and ready
for their intended use are measured at the lower of carrying
amount or estimated fair value minus the cost to sell in
accordance with the provisions governing long-lived assets
that are to be disposed of.

Mortgage Loan Servicing Rights

The group allocates a portion of the cost of originating a
mortgage loan to the mortgage servicing right based on its
fair value relative to the loan as a whole. Capitalized mortgage
loan servicing rights are amortized in proportion to, and
over the period of, estimated net servicing revenues. The
fair market value of originated mortgage servicing rights is
estimated using buyers’ quoted prices for servicing rights
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with similar attributes, such as loan type, size, escrow and
geographic location. Purchased mortgage servicing rights
are recorded at cost.

To evaluate possible impairment of mortgage servicing rights,
the portfolio is periodically stratified based on the predominant
risk characteristics and the capitalized basis of each stratum is
compared to fair value. Predominant risk characteristics
considered include loan type and interest rate. Should the
net capitalized mortgage servicing rights exceed fair value,
impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance.

Amortization expense and changes to the valuation
allowance are included in loan origination, marketing and
servicing fees, net, in the summarized statements of income.

Income Taxes

The group is included in the consolidated income tax return
filed by the parent company. Under an agreement with the
parent company, the group provides a current income tax
provision that takes into account the separate taxable income
of the group. Deferred income taxes are recorded by the group.

NOTE B | ACQUISITIONS

On March 1, 2000, the group acquired all of the outstanding
stock of American Finance Group, Inc. (AFG) for $32 million
cash. AFG, an industrial and commercial equipment leasing
and financing operation, had total assets (primarily financing
leases, loans, and equipment under operating leases) of $161
million and total liabilities (primarily debt) of $132 million,
of which $128 million was repaid after acquisition. The excess
of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired of $1 million is being amortized on the
straight-line method over 10 years.

On June 29,1999, the group acquired all of the outstanding
stock of HF Bancorp, Inc., the parent company of Hemet
Federal Savings & Loan Association (Hemet) for $119 million
cash. Hemet had total assets of $1.2 billion (primarily loans
and securities) and total liabilities of $1.1 billion (primarily
deposits). The excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired of $40 million is
being amortized on the straight-line method over 25 years.

On June 11, 1999, the group acquired the assets of Fidelity
Funding, Inc. (Fidelity) for $18 million in cash. Fidelity, an
asset based lending operation, had assets (primarily
loans) of $111 million. The excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired of
$18 million is being amortized on the straight-line method
over 10 years.
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The acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the acquired
assets and liabilities were adjusted to their estimated fair values at the date of the acquisitions. The operating results of
the acquisitions are included in the accompanying summarized financial statements from the acquisition dates. The
unaudited pro forma results of operations, assuming the acquisitions had been effected as of the beginning of the applicable
fiscal year, would not have been materially different from those reported.

NOTE C | LOANS RECEIVABLE

The outstanding principle balances of loans receivable consists of the following:

At year end 2000 1999

(in millions)

Real estate MOTtGage. ..........oooiiiiiiiiii i $ 3,618 $ 3,763
Construction and development ..o 4,007 3,253
Commercial and business...................oooiiiiiiii 1,681 1,265
Consumer and Other ... 1,215 1,121
Premiums, discounts and deferred fees, net ... 8 7
10,529 9,409
Less: Allowance for 10an 10SSes..................occoiiiiiiiiiii (118) (113)
$ 10,411 $ 9,296

Real estate mortgages are primarily single-family adjustable-rate loans secured by properties located throughout the
United States, primarily in California and Texas. Construction and development loans consist primarily of office,
multi-family, retail, industrial and assisted living properties and are predominantly located in Texas, California, Florida,
Georgia, Colorado, Illinois and Arizona. Commercial and business loans include working capital, equipment financing
and other business loans primarily in Texas. Consumer and other loans include a variety of products and are primarily
secured by real estate and automobiles.

At year-end 2000, the group had unfunded commitments on outstanding loans totaling approximately $4.7 billion. In
addition, at year-end 2000, the group had issued letters of credit totaling approximately $148 million. The portion of
these amounts to be ultimately funded is uncertain.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:

For the year 2000 1999 1998

(in millions)

Balance, beginning of year................................. $ 113 $ 87 $ 91
Provision for loan 10Sses .....................cccoiiiiiiiii 39 38 1
Additions related to acquisitions and bulk

purchases of loans ... 2 12 -
Charge-offs, net of recoveries..................cccocooiiiiiii. (36) (24) (5)
Balance, end of year..................ccii $ 118 $ 113 $ 87
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NOTE D ‘ MORTGAGE-BACKED AND OTHER SECURITIES
The amortized cost and fair values of mortgage-backed and other securities consists of the following:
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
At year end 2000
Available-for-sale
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA certificates.....................ccccooooiiiiiiil $ 1,876 $ 19 $ (2) $ 1,893
FHLMC certificates... 89 2 - 91
GNMA certificates......................coccooiiiiiii 133 - - 133
Collateralized mortgage obligations..................... 12 - (2) 110
Private issuer pass-through securities.................. 10 - - 10
2,220 21 (1) 2,237
Debt securities:
Corporate securities....................ccoocooiiiii. 3 - - 3
Equity securities, primarily Federal
Home Loan Bank stock....................................... 175 - - 175
$ 2,398 $ 21 $ (4) $ 2,415
Held-to-maturity
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA certificates. ... $ 555 $ - $ (17) $ 538
FHLMC certificates......................cccooiiiiiiei. 105 - (3) 102
Collateralized mortgage obligations..... 104 - (3) 101
Private issuer pass-through securities................. 100 - (3) 97
$ 864 $ - $(26) $ 838
At year end 1999
Available-for-sale
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA certificates.........................occooiioiiii $ 963 $ 2 $ (15) $ 950
FHLMC certificates.............cccccooviieeeeeiiiiiiiiee 84 - (1) 83
GNMA certificates.......................occooiiiiii 96 - - 96
Collateralized mortgage obligations..................... 120 - (3) 117
Private issuer pass-through securities................. 12 - (2) 10
1,275 2 (21) 1,256
Debt securities:
US Government.................coooeeoeeieiiiiL 7 - - 7
Corporate securities 2 - - 2
Equity securities, primarily Federal
Home Loan Bank stock.............................o...... 166 - - 166
$ 1,450 $ 2 $ (21) $ 1,431
Held-to-maturity
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA certificates.............ooooooiiiiiieeieiieii $ 647 $ - $ (31) $ 616
FHLMC certificates.............cccocoovviiieeeeiiiiiieee 125 - (6) 119
Collateralized mortgage obligations.................... 131 - (6) 125
Private issuer pass-through securities................. 158 - (9) 149
$ 1,061 $ - $ (52) $ 1,009
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value by maturity of mortgage-backed and other securities are shown in the
following table. Securities are classified according to their contractual maturities without consideration of principal
amortization, potential prepayments or call options. Accordingly, actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities.

Amortized Fair

At year end 2000 Cost Value
(in millions)
Duein1year orless....................... $ - $ -
Due after 1 year through 5 years 3 1
Due after 5 years through 10 years ... 1us 116
Due After 10 YEATS ........ioiiiiiiit i 3,141 3,136

Total mortgage-backed and other securities ... $ 3,262 $ 3,253

The mortgage loans underlying mortgage-backed securities have adjustable interest rates and generally have contractual
maturities ranging from 15 to 40 years with principal and interest installments due monthly. The actual maturities of mortgage-
backed securities may differ from the contractual maturities of the underlying loans because issuers or mortgagors may have the
right to call or prepay their securities or loans.

Certain mortgage-backed and other securities are guaranteed directly or indirectly by the U.S. government or its agencies.
Other mortgage-backed securities not guaranteed by the U.S. government or its agencies are senior subordinated securities
considered investment grade quality by third-party rating agencies. The collateral underlying these securities is primarily
residential properties located in California.

The group securitized and continued to hold $297 million and $217 million of mortgage loans previously held in the loan
portfolio during 2000 and 1999, respectively. The transfer to mortgage-backed securities was recorded at the carrying
value of the mortgage loans at the time of securitization. The market value of the securities generated through these secu-
ritization activities are obtained through active market quotes. The group held $689 million and $601 million in such
securities at year-end 2000 and 1999, respectively.

NOTE E | DEPOSITS

Deposits consists of the following:

2000 1999

Average Average
Stated Rate Amount Stated Rate Amount

(in millions)
Noninterest bearing demand....................... - $ 302 - $ 329
Interest bearing demand..................... 4.36% 2,504 3.46% 2,035
Savings deposits..............ocoociiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1.83% 167 1.96% 214
Time deposits...........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiii 6.13% 6,855 5.36% 6,449
$ 9,828 $ 9,027
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Scheduled maturities of time deposits at year-end 2000 are as follows:

$100,000 or Less than
More $100,000 Total
(in millions)
3monthsorless......................... $ 547 $ 1,651 $ 2,198
Over 3 through 6 months ... 307 1,485 1,792
Over 6 through 12 months................. 344 1,549 1,893
Over1zmonths ... 175 797 972
$ 1,373 $ 5,482 $ 6,855

At year-end 2000, time deposits maturity dates were as follows
(in millions): 2001—$5,883; 2002—$619; 2003—$182; 2004—$83;
2005—$86; 2006 and thereafter—s¢2.

NOTE F | SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities sold under repurchase agreements were delivered
to brokers/dealers who retained such securities as collateral
for the borrowings and have agreed to resell the same
securities back to Guaranty at the maturities of the agree-
ments. The agreements generally mature within 30 days.

Information concerning borrowings under repurchase
agreements is summarized as follows:

For the year 2000 1999
(in millions)

Average daily balance................... $ 484 $ 112
Maximum month-end balance........ $ 898 $ 223

There were $595 million of securities sold under repurchase
agreements outstanding at year-end 2000 and no securities
sold under repurchase agreements at year-end 1999. At year-
end 2000, the fair value of securities sold under repurchase
agreements was $623 million of FNMA certificates and
$19 million of FHLMC certificates.

NOTE G | FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

Pursuant to collateral agreements with the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Dallas (FHLB), advances are secured by
a blanket floating lien on Guaranty’s assets and by securities
on deposit at the FHLB. The weighted average interest rate
of FHLB advances was 6.37 percent and 5.75 percent at year-
end 2000 and 1999, respectively. At year-end 2000, the
advances had maturity dates as follows (in millions):
2001—$2,857 and 2003—$12.

NOTE H | OTHER BORROWINGS

Other borrowings, which represent borrowings of non-savings bank entities, consists of the following:

At year end 2000 1999
(in millions)
Long-term debt with an average rate of 7.91% and 6.75%
during 2000 and 1999, respectively, due through 2001 ... $ 168 $ 175
Long-term debt at various rates which
approximate prime, secured primarily by real estate.........................o 42 37
$ 210 212
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At year-end 2000, a non-savings bank subsidiary had a $210
million credit facility, which expires in 2001, with $42 million
remaining unused.

At year-end 2000, maturities of other borrowings are as
follows (in millions): 2001—$170; 2002—$2; 2003—$2;
2004—$2; 2005—$2; 2006 and thereafter—$32.

NOTE | | PREFERRED STOCK ISSUED BY SUBSIDIARIES

Guaranty has two subsidiaries that qualify as real estate
investment trusts, Guaranty Preferred Capital Corporation
(GPCC) and Guaranty Preferred Capital Corporation II
(GPCC1I). Both are authorized to issue floating rate and
fixed rate preferred stock. These preferred stocks have a
liquidation preference of $1,000 per share, dividends that
are non-cumulative and payable when declared, and are
convertible into Guaranty preferred stock upon the occur-
rence of certain regulatory events.

In 1997, GPCC issued an aggregate of 150,000 shares of
floating rate preferred stock for an aggregate consideration
of $150 million cash. GPCC issued an additional 75,000
shares in 1998 for an aggregate consideration of $75 million
cash. Within ten years of issuance, at the option of GPCC,
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these shares may be redeemed in whole or in part for $1,000
per share cash.

At inception in December 2000, GPCC II issued 35,000
shares of floating rate preferred stock and 45,000 shares
of 9.15 percent fixed rate preferred stock for an aggregate
consideration of $80 million cash. Prior to May 2007, at
the option of GPCC II, these shares may be redeemed in
whole or in part for $1,000 per share cash plus, under
certain circumstances, a make-whole premium.

NOTE J | MORTGAGE LOAN SERVICING

The group services mortgage loans that are owned primarily
by independent investors. The group serviced approximately
209,600 and 241,400 mortgage loans aggregating $19.5 billion
and $22.2 billion as of year-end 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The group is required to advance, from group funds, escrow
and foreclosure costs on loans it services. The majority of these
advances are recoverable, except for certain amounts for loans
serviced for GNMA. A reserve has been established for unre-
coverable advances. Market risk is assumed related to the
disposal of certain foreclosed VA loans. No significant losses were
incurred during 2000, 1999 or 1998 in connection with this risk.

Capitalized mortgage loan servicing rights, net of accumulated amortization, were as follows:

Purchased Originated
Loan Servicing Loan Servicing

For the year 2000 Rights Rights Total

(in millions)

Balance, beginning of year.....................c.ooooiiii $ 155 $ 13 $ 268
AddItions. ... 4 12 16
AmOTtization eXPense. .................ocoooiiiiiiii (20) (14) (34)
SAlES. ..o (1) (3) (4)

Subtotal ... $ 138 $ 108 $ 246
Valuation allowance..............................ccocoiiii -

Balance, end of year.....................ccooiiiii $ 246

For the year 1999

(in millions)

Balance, beginning of year....................ccoooiiii $ 142 $ 89 $ 231
Additions 42 55 97
Amortization expense (29) (20) (49)
SaleS - (11) (11)

Subtotal ... $ 155 $ 113 $ 268
Valuation allowance.............cccoooioioeioo (1)
Balance, end of year..................coccooiiiiiii $ 267
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Amortization expense related to mortgage loan servicing
rights totaled $34 million, $49 million and $56 million for
2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The valuation allowance
was reduced $1 million in 2000 and $16 million in 1999 by
a credit to operations and increased $17 million in 1998 by
a charge to operations.

The estimated fair value of the capitalized mortgage servicing
rights at year-end 2000 was approximately $305 million. Fair
value was determined utilizing market-driven assumptions
for prepayment speeds, discount rates and other variables.

NOTE K | INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

Guaranty is a party to various interest rate corridor agree-
ments, which reduce the impact of increases in interest rates
on its investments in adjustable-rate mortgage-backed
securities that have lifetime interest rate caps. Under these
agreements with notional amounts totaling $213 million
and $291 million at year-end 2000 and 1999, respectively,
Guaranty simultaneously purchased and sold caps whereby
it receives interest if the variable rate based on FHLB Eleventh
District Cost of Funds (EDCOF) Index (5.61 percent at year
end 2000) exceeds an average strike rate of 8.81 percent and
pays interest if the same variable rate exceeds a strike rate of
11.75 percent. These agreements mature through 2003.

Guaranty is also a party to an interest rate cap agreement
to reduce the impact of interest rate increases on certain
adjustable rate investments with lifetime caps. Under this
agreement, with a notional amount of $29 million, Guaranty
would receive payments if the EDCOF exceeds the strike
rate of 10 percent. This agreement matures in 2004.

The amounts subject to credit risk are the streams of payments
receivable by Guaranty under the terms of the contracts not
the notional amounts used to express the volumes of these
transactions. Guaranty minimizes its exposure to credit risk
by entering into contracts with major U.S. securities firms.

The mortgage banking operation enters into forward sales
commitments to deliver mortgage loans to third parties. These
forward sales commitments hedge volatility of interest rates
between the time a mortgage loan commitment is made and
the subsequent funding and sale of the loan to a third party.
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NOTEL | COMMITMENTS

The group leases equipment and facilities under various
operating lease agreements. Future minimum rental
payments, net of related sublease income and exclusive of
related expenses, under non-cancelable operating leases
with a remaining term in excess of one year are as follows
(in millions): 2001—$11; 2002—$9; 2003—$8; 2004—$6;
2005—$5; 2006 and thereafter—$6.

Total rent expense under these lease agreements was
$15 million, $14 million and $15 million for 2000, 1999 and
1998, respectively.

At year-end 2000, the group had commitments to originate
or purchase loans totaling approximately $1.0 billion and
commitments to sell mortgage loans of approximately
$251 million. To the extent mortgage loans at the appro-
priate rates are not available to fulfill the sales commitments,
the group is subject to market risk resulting from interest
rate fluctuations.

NOTE M | REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS

Guaranty is subject to various regulatory capital require-
ments administered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on Guaranty’s financial statements. The
payment of dividends from Guaranty is subject to proper
regulatory notification.

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory frame-
work for prompt corrective action, Guaranty must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of Guaranty’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.
Capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components,
risk weightings and other factors. At year-end 2000,
Guaranty met all of its capital adequacy requirements.
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At year-end 2000, the most recent notification from regulators categorized Guaranty as “well capitalized.” The following
table sets forth Guaranty’s actual capital amounts and ratios along with the minimum capital amounts and ratios
Guaranty must maintain in order to meet capital adequacy requirements and to be categorized as “well capitalized.” No
amounts were deducted from capital for interest-rate risk at year-end 2000 or 1999.

For For

Capital Adequacy Categorization as
Actual Requirements “Well Capitalized”

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(dollars in millions)

At year end 2000:
Total Risk-Based Ratio
(Risk-based capital /
Total risk-weight assets)........ $ 1,283 10.29% >$ 998 > 8.00%
Tier 1 (Core) Risk-Based
Ratio (Core capital /

> $ 1,247 210.00 %

Total risk-weight assets)......... $ 1,153 9.24% > $ 499 2 4.00%

v

2$ 748 6.00%
Tier 1 (Core) Leverage Ratio
(Core capital / Adjusted
tangible assets)....................... $ 1,153 7.77 % >$ 593 > 4.00%
Tangible Ratio
(Tangible equity /
Tangible assets).................... $ 1,153 7.77 % > ¢ 297 22.00% N/A N/A

v

Z$ 742 5.00%

At year end 1999:
Total Risk-Based Ratio
(Risk-based capital /
Total risk-weight assets)......... $ 1,139 10.33% >4 882 >8.00%
Tier 1 (Core) Risk-Based
Ratio (Core capital /

>$ 1,102 > 10.00%

Total risk-weight assets).......... $ 1,058 9.60% >$ 441 >4.00% >$ 661

\Y2

6.00%
Tier 1 (Core) Leverage Ratio
(Core capital / Adjusted
tangible assets)....................... $ 1,058 8.22% >$ 515 >4.00%
Tangible Ratio
(Tangible equity /
Tangible assets)..................... $ 1,058 8.22% >$ 257 >2.00% N/A N/A

>$ 643

\Y2

5.00%
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For the year 2000 1999 1998
Revenues
Manufacturing ........ $ 2,917 $ 2,692 $ 2,367
Financial Services 1,369 1,116 1,036
4,286 3,808 3,403
Costs and Expenses
Manufacturing .............ocoooiiiiiiiii 2,677 2,445 2,244
Special charge.................i 15 - 47
Financial Services ... 1,180 978 882
3,872 3,423 3,173
Operating InCome ..o 414 385 230
Parent Company interest..................ccocooovioiiiiiiiii, (104) (95) (78)
Other.......ooo 10 16 6
Income From Continuing Operations Before Taxes 320 306 158
TNCOME TAKES ... oeeoeeeee e (125) (115) (70)
Income From Continuing Operations................cccccoeevniiniinnnn. 195 191 88
Discontinued Operation.................ccooooviiiiiiiiiei, - (92) (21)
Income Before Accounting Change ..............occcoiiiiiiniiniinnnn. 195 99 67
Effect of accounting change..................ccocoooiiii, - - (3)
Net INCOME ... e $ 195 $ 99 $ 64
Earnings Per Share
Basic:
Income from continuing operations ................................ $ 3.83 $  3.45 $ 1.60
Discontinued Operation..................cocooiiiiiiiiii - (1.66) (.38)
Effect of accounting change ... - - (.06)
Net INCOME. ...t $ 3.83 $ 179 $ 116
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations................................. $ 3.83 $  3.43 $ 159
Discontinued Operation..................ccocoooiiiiiiiiii - (1.65) (.38)
Effect of accounting change ... - - (.06)
Net income $ 3.83 $ 178 $ 115

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

Temple-Inland Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Parent Financial
At year end 2000 Company Services Consolidated
(in millions)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents........................................ $ 2 $ 320 $ 322
Mortgage loans held for sale......................o - 232 232
Loans receivable, net.............coo - 10,411 10,411
Mortgage-backed and other securities
available-for-sale.................................................. - 2,415 2,415
Mortgage-backed and other securities
held-to-maturity...............coooiiiiiiii - 864 864
Trade and other receivables............................................. 320 - 309
TNVENTOTIES ... 253 - 253
Property and equipment ... 2,027 157 2,184
Other assets...............ooccooiiiiiiii e 252 925 1,152
Investment in Financial Services......................................... 1,093 - -
Total ASSETS.........ooi i $ 3,947 $ 15,324 $ 18,142
Liabilities
DEPOSIES. ... $ - $ 9,828 $ 9,828
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.... - 2,869 2,869
Securities sold under repurchase agreements...................... - 595 595
Other liabilities ........................coo 315 423 706
Long-term debt..............oooiii 1,381 210 1,591
Deferred income taxes.........................oociiiiii 276 - 272
Postretirement benefits................................................ 142 - 142
Stock issued by subsidiaries...................ocooiii - 306 306
Total Liabilities $ 2,114 $ 14,231 $ 16,309
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock—par value $1 per share: authorized
25,000,000 shares; noneissued ..................................... -
Common stock—par value $1 per share: authorized
200,000,000 shares; issued 61,389,552 shares
including shares held in the treasury.............................. 61
Additional paid-in capital ... 365
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)............... (8)
Retained €arnings...............cocoooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1,968
2,386
Cost of shares held in the treasury: 12,215,499 shares........... (553)
Total Shareholders’ Equity ..o 1,833
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity............................ $ 18,142

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Parent Financial
At year end 1999 Company Services Consolidated
(in millions)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents........................... $ 51 $ 233 $ 284
Mortgage loans held for sale.....................o - 252 252
Loans receivable, net ... - 9,296 9,296
Mortgage-backed and other securities
available-for-sale.................................................... - 1,431 1,431
Mortgage-backed and other securities
held-to-maturity ... - 1,061 1,061
Trade and other receivables............................................. 328 - 319
INVENtOTIeS. ... 287 - 287
Property and equipment 2,052 145 2,197
Other @SSets ............ooooii i 200 903 1,059
Investment in Financial Services..............cccoooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeii. 1,023 - -
Total ASSEtS..........oooii i $ 3,941 $ 13,321 $ 16,186
Liabilities
DEPOSIES. ... $ - $ 9,027 $ 9,027
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.... . - 2,403 2,403
Other liabilities ... 392 430 799
Long-term debt................oi 1,253 212 1,465
Deferred income taxes.......................ccccooiiiiiiii 226 - 196
Postretirement benefits ................................................ 143 - 143
Stock issued by subsidiaries..................cccooiiiiii - 226 226
Total Liabilities.........................coiii $ 2,014 $ 12,298 $ 14,259
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock—par value $1 per share: authorized
25,000,000 shares; noneissued...................................... -
Common stock—par value $1 per share: authorized
200,000,000 shares; issued 61,389,552 shares
including shares held in the treasury............................... 61
Additional paid-in capital ... 364
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)............... (31)
Retained €arnings ................cocoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 1,838
2,232
Cost of shares held in the treasury: 7177592 shares............. (305)
Total Shareholders’ Equity..............cccooiiiiiiiiii, 1,927
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity............................ $ 16,186

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Cash Provided By (Used For) Operations
Net INCOME ... $ 195 $ 99 64
Adjustments:
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations................... - 77 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change...................... - - 3
Special charge.................o 15 - 47
Depreciation and depletion ... 216 217 206
Amortization of goodwill ... 9 8 7
Deferred taxes ..o 57 14 18
Amortization and accretion on
financial instruments.......................ooccooiiiiii 28 40 90
Mortgage loans held forsale............................. 20 369 (183)
Receivables.......................ccoooii 9 (74) (11)
Inventories ... 16 (4) 2
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.......................... (84) 42 (16)
Collections and remittances on loans serviced
for others, net......................cocoiiii (32) (251) 129
Change in net assets of discontinued operations............. - 23 63
Other........oooo 30 71 (76)
479 631 343
Cash Provided By (Used For) Investments
Capital expenditures....................cocooiiii (257) (204) (196)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations................... - 576 -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment................... 22 55 28
Purchase of securities available-for-sale............................. (1,036) (294) (208)
Maturities of securities available-for-sale......................... 338 279 300
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale ............... - 145 53
Maturities and redemptions of securities
held-to-maturity.................ooooiiii 192 351 349
Loans originated or acquired, net of principal
collected onloans...........................coooo (1,506) (1,163) (1,852)
Proceeds from sale of loans.......................................... 253 299 16
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and joint ventures... (38) (157) (123)
Other ... (64) (17) (10)
(2,096) (130) (1,643)
Cash Provided By (Used For) Financing
Additions todebt....................... 297 347 1,089
Payments of debt ... (312) (1,335) (426)
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and
short-term borrowings, net ... 1,071 (121) 788
Net increase (decrease) in deposits..................c.ccocoooii. 717 808 (36)
Purchase of deposits................ocooiiiiiiiiiii 140 - -
Purchase of stock for treasury....................ccoccoooiiii (250) (100) (48)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders .................................. (65) (71) (71)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries stock ... 8o 1 75
Other .o (23) 10 (15)
1,655 (461) 1,356
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents............................ 38 40 56
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.................. 284 244 188
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............................... $ 322 $ 284 244

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
Other
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Treasury
Stock Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Stock Total
(in millions)
Balance at year end 1997 ................... $ 61 $ 356 $ (20) $ 1,817 $ (169) $ 2,045
Comprehensive income

Net income...................................... - - - 64 - 64

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains on securities........ - - 5 - - 5

Minimum pension liability .......... - - (2) - - (2)

Total comprehensive income............ - - - - - 67
Dividends paid on common stock —

$1.28 per share..................... - - - (71) - (1)
Stock issued for stock plans —

134,430 shares............................ - 1 - - 4 5
Stock acquired for treasury —

850,558 shares ... - - - - (48) (48)
Balance at year end 1998 $ 61 $ 357 $ (17) $ 1,810 $ (213) $ 1,998
Comprehensive income

Net income...................................... - - - 99 - 99

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized losses on securities....... - - (15) - - (15)

Foreign currency

translation adjustment............. - - 1 - - 1

Total comprehensive income............ - - - - - 85
Dividends paid on common stock —

$1.28 pershare ... - - - (71) - (71)
Stock issued for stock plans —

256,599 shares............................... - 7 - - 8 15
Stock acquired for treasury —

1,649,052 shares ... - - - - (100) (100)
Balance at year end 1999 ................... $ 61 $ 364 $ (31) $ 1,838 $ (305) $ 1,927
Comprehensive income

Net income...................................... - - - 195 - 195

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains on securities - - 23 - - 23

Minimum pension liability........... - - (2) - - (2)

Foreign currency

translation adjustment............. - - 2 - - 2

Total comprehensive income............ - - - - - 218
Dividends paid on common stock —

$1.28 pershare .......................... - - - (65) - (65)
Stock issued for stock plans —

57,999 shares .............ccccocoiiiiiii. - 1 - - 2 3
Stock acquired for treasury —

5,095,906 shares........................... - - - - (250) (250)
Balance at year end 2000 $ 61 $ 365 $ (8) $ 1,968 $ (553) $ 1,833

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 ‘ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Temple-Inland Inc. and its manufacturing and financial
services subsidiaries (the company). Investments in joint
ventures and other subsidiaries in which the company has
between a 20 percent and 50 percent equity ownership are
reflected using the equity method. All material inter-
company amounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to
current year’s classifications.

The consolidated net assets invested in financial services
activities are subject, in varying degrees, to regulatory rules
and restrictions. Accordingly, included as an integral part of
the consolidated financial statements are separate summa-
rized financial statements and notes for the company’s
manufacturing and financial services groups, as well as the
significant accounting policies unique to each group.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions.
These estimates and assumptions affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes, including disclosures related to contingencies.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other
short-term liquid instruments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Translation of International Currencies

Balance sheets of the company’s international operations
where the functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar
are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates.
Adjustments resulting from financial statement translation
are reported as a component of shareholders’ equity. For
other international operations where the functional cur-
rency is the U.S. dollar, inventories and property, plant and
equipment values are translated at the historical rate of
exchange, while other assets and liabilities are translated at
year-end exchange rates. Translation adjustments for these
operations are included in earnings and are not material.
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Income and expense items are translated into U.S. dollars
at average rates of exchange prevailing during the year.
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions
are included in earnings and are not material.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purposes computed using current tax rates.

Stock Based Compensation
The company uses the intrinsic value method in accounting
for its stock based employee compensation plans.

Long-Lived Assets

Impairment losses are recognized on assets held for use when
indicators of impairment are present and the estimated
undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the
assets’ carrying amount. Assets held for disposal are
recorded at the lower of carrying value or estimated fair
value less costs to sell.

Capitalized Software

The company capitalizes purchased software costs as well
as the direct costs, both internal and external, associated
with software developed for internal use. Such costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of three to seven years. Costs capitalized were
$58 million in 2000, $31 million in 1999 and $10 million in
1998. Amortization of these costs was $8 million in 2000,
$6 million in 1999 and $3 million in 1998.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The company will be required to adopt Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivatives
Instruments and Hedging Activities, beginning 2001. This
statement will require derivative positions to be recognized
in the balance sheet at fair value. The effect of adopting
this statement will not materially affect the company’s
earnings or financial position. As permitted by this statement,
the company will change the designation of its portfolio
of held-to-maturity securities, which are carried at
unamortized cost, to available-for-sale, which are carried at
fair value. As a result, the carrying value of these securities
will be adjusted to their fair value with a corresponding
after tax reduction of $16 million in other comprehensive
income, a component of shareholders’ equity.
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NOTE 2 | TAXES ON INCOME
Taxes on income from continuing operations consisted of the following:
For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Current tax provision:
U.S.Federal ... $ 44 $ 89 $ 38
State and other.........................cci 14 12 10
58 101 48
Deferred tax provision:
US. Federal ... 66 14 21
State and other....................... 1 - 1
67 14 22
Provision for income taxes ... $ 125 $ 115 $ 70
Earnings or losses from operations consisted of the following:
For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Earnings (Losses):
S $ 319 $ 311 $ 189
1 (5) (31)
$ 320 $ 306 $ 158

The difference between the consolidated effective income tax rate and the federal statutory income tax rate include the following:

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Taxes on income at statutory rate..............c..cocoooveieniienn.. $ 112 $ 107 $ 56
State net of federal benefit ................................................ 9 8 6
Foreign operations.....................oooiiiiiiiiiii 1 3 6
Sale of foreign subsidiary....................... - (7) -
Goodwill ... 2 2 1
Other. ..o 1 2 1
$ 125 $ 115 $ 70
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Significant components of the company’s consolidated deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At year end 2000 1999
(in millions)
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
DePIeCIatiON. ... ....oiiiiii ittt $ 270 $ 254
Timber and timberlands .. 37 37
POISIONS ... 33 26
Originated mortage servicing rights......................oi 36 38
OUNET. . 32 34
Total deferred tax liabilities.......................oooiiiiii 408 389
Deferred Tax Assets:
Alternative minimum tax credits ... 142 185
Net operating loss carryforwards ... 20 12
OPEB obligations .... 55 56
Bad debt reServe ..o 33 27
OtRET. . 46 67
Total deferred tax @SSEtS .............ccooiiiiiiiii e 296 347
Valuation ALIOWANCE ..........ooiiiii i (160) (154)
Net deferred tax liability.... $ 272 $ 196

The valuation allowance represents accruals for deductions
and credits that are uncertain and, accordingly, have not
been recognized for financial reporting purposes. The
change in the valuation allowance is primarily the result of
increased foreign net operating losses, the future realization
of which is not assured.

The company has domestic net operating loss carryforwards
of $1 million that expire in 2005. In addition, the company has
foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $39 million that
will expire from the year 2005 through the year 2011 and $16
million that may be carried forward indefinitely. Alternative
minimum tax credits may be carried forward indefinitely.
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the company has not provided deferred taxes on approxi-
mately $31 million of pre-1988 tax bad debt reserves.

In 1999, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) concluded its
examination of the company's consolidated tax returns
for the years 1987 through 1992. As a result of this exam-
ination, the company agreed to pay approximately $36
million in taxes and interest for those years, of which $19
million was paid in 1999 and the remainder in 2000. The
IRS is currently examining the company’s consolidated
tax returns for the years 1993 through 1996. The resolution
of these examinations is not expected to have a material
adverse impact on the company's financial condition or
results of operations.

Cash income tax payments, net of refunds received,
including the payments related to the IRS exam were $88
million, $72 million and $39 million during 2000, 1999 and
1998, respectively.
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The carrying amounts and the estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows:

2000 1999
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

At year end Amount Value Amount Value
(in millions)
Financial Assets

Loans receivable .............ooooiiiiii $ 10,411 $ 10,414 $ 9,296 $ 9,248

Mortgage-backed and other securities ............... 3,279 3,253 2,492 2,440
Financial Liabilities

DePOSItS ... 9,828 9,835 9,027 8,987

FHLB adVvances. ... 2,869 2,869 2,403 2,403

Total debt ... ,593 1,577 1,466 1,443
Oft-Balance-Sheet Instruments

Interest rate contracts ... - (2) - 2

Commodity futures contracts... - (3) - -

Commitments to extend credit.......................... - 3 - 2

Differences between fair value and carrying amounts are
primarily due to instruments that provide fixed interest
rates or contain fixed interest rate elements. Inherently, such
instruments are subject to fluctuations in fair value due to
subsequent movements in interest rates. The fair value of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade
payables, securities sold under agreements to repurchase
and mortgage loans held for sale consistently approximate
the carrying amount due to their short-term nature and
are excluded from the above table. The fair value of
mortgage-backed and other securities and off-balance-
sheet instruments are based on quoted market prices.
Other financial instruments are valued using discounted
cash flows. The discount rates used represent current rates
for similar instruments.

The company has guaranteed certain joint venture obligations
principally related to variable-rate debt instruments at
year-end 2000. It is not practicable to estimate the fair
value of these guarantees.

NOTE 4 ‘ SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

The company has a Shareholder Rights Plan in which one-half
of a preferred stock purchase right (Right) was declared as
a dividend for each common share outstanding. Each Right
entitles shareholders to purchase, under certain conditions,
one one-hundredth of a share of newly issued Series A Junior

Participating Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $200.
Rights will be exercisable only if a person or group
acquires beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of the
company’s common shares or commences a tender or
exchange offer, upon consummation of which such person
or group would beneficially own 25 percent or more of the
company’s common shares. The company will generally be
entitled to redeem the Rights at $.01 per Right at any time
until the 10th business day following public announcement
that a 20 percent position has been acquired. The Rights
will expire on February 20, 2009.

NOTE 5 ‘ EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The company has pension plans covering substantially all
employees. Plans covering salaried and nonunion hourly
employees provide benefits based on compensation and
years of service, while union hourly plans are based on nego-
tiated benefits and years of service. The company’s policy is to
fund amounts on an actuarial basis in order to accumulate
assets sufficient to meet the benefits to be paid in accordance
with the requirements of ERISA. Contributions to the plans
are made to trusts for the benefit of plan participants.

The company provides, as a postretirement benefit, medical
and insurance coverage to eligible salaried and hourly
employees who reach retirement age while employed by
the company.
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The change in benefit obligation, plan assets and the funded status of employee benefit plans follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
At year end 2000 1999 2000 1999
(in millions)
Benefit obligation at beginning of year................... $ 582 $ 597 $ 1 $ 133
S@IVICE COSE.....uuiiiiiiiiiiiii i 15 17 3 3
Interest COSt ...t 42 39 8 8
Change in assumptions. ..., - (50) - -
Plan amendments...............................cci 6 3 - (2)
Actuarial (gain)/loss..................... 4 4 30 (21)
Termination benefits.... . - - - -
Benefits paid..............coocoooiiii (35) (28) (12) (11)
Retiree contributions.................................... - - 1 1
Benefit obligation at end of the year..................... $ 614 $ 582 $ 141 $ 1
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year............ $ 711 $ 616 $ - $ -
Actual Teturn...............oo 158 122 - -
Benefits paid..... (35) (28) - -
Contributions 4 1 - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year..................... $ 838 $ 711 $ - $ -
Funded status ... $ 224 $ 129 $ (141) $ (111)
Unrecognized net loss/(gain) ... (160) (69) 6 (24)
Prior service costs not yet recognized...................... 1 5 () (8)
Unrecognized net transition obligation/(asset). - (4) - -
Additional minimum liability............................. (7) (4) -
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost......................o $ 68 $ 57 $ (142) $ (143)

The net prepaid benefit cost of $68 million at year-end 2000 is comprised of pension plans with prepaid benefit cost totaling
$90 million and accrued benefit liability totaling $22 million. Amounts applicable to the company’s pension plans with
accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets are as follows:

At year end 2000 1999

(in millions)

Projected benefit Obligation ...t $ 20 $ 16
Accumulated benefit obligation ... $ 17 $ 14
Fair value of Plan @Ssets..............coiiiiiiiiii i s - s -
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Significant assumptions used for the employee pension plans follow:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
For the year 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
Weighted Average Assumptions:
Discountrate......................oooocooi. 7.50 % 7.50% 6.75% 7.50 % 7.50% 6.75%
Expected long-term rate of return......... 9.00 % 9.00% 9.00% - - -
Rate of compensation increase.............. 4.75% 4.75% 4.00% - - -

A 7.75 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2001. The rate
was assumed to decrease gradually to 6 percent for 2010 and remain at that level thereafter.

Net periodic benefit cost (credit) for pension and postretirement plans include the following:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
For the year 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

(in millions)
Charges (Credits)
Service cost-benefits earned

during the period......................... $ 15 $ 17 $ 15 $ 3 $ 3 $ 3
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation................ 42 39 37 8 8 8
Expected return on plan assets (62) (54) (56) - - -
Net amortization and deferral............... (4) (3) (s5) (1) (1) (1)
Net periodic benefit cost

(credit)(@) ..o $ (9) s (1) $ (9) $ 10 $ 10 $ 10

(a) In addition to the above, in 2000 the company recognized an additional $.3 million expense relating to postretirement benefits for special termination
benefits resulting from restructuring of the Pineland operation. In 1999, the company recognized an additional $4 million credit relating to pension benefits
and a $2 million credit relating to postretirement benefits for curtailments resulting from the sale of the bleached paperboard operation. In 1998, the
company recognized an additional $3 million credit relating to pension benefits and a $1 million credit relating to postretirement benefits for curtailments

resulting from employee terminations.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the postretirement benefits.
A one percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

1 Percentage 1 Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease
(in millions)
Effect on total of service and interest cost components in 2000................ccocoooieiriricirinn. $ 1 s (1)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation at year-end 2000 ..................ccoooiiiiiiii $ 1 $ (9)
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NOTE 6 ‘ STOCK OPTION PLANS

The company has established stock option plans for key employees and directors. The plans provide for the granting of
nonqualified stock options and/or incentive stock options, and prior to 1994, of stock appreciation rights with all or part of
any options so granted. Options granted after 1995 generally have a ten-year term and become exercisable in steps from
one to five years.

A summary of stock option activity follows:

For the year 2000 1999 1998
(shares in thousands) Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding beginning of year........ 1,974 $ 53 1,892 $ 51 1,430 $ 47
Granted................................. 971 55 455 61 654 56
Exercised ... (88) 48 (315) 47 (139) 38
Forfeited ... (101) 54 (58) 53 (53) 50
Outstanding end of year............... 2,756 $ 54 1,974 $ 53 1,892 $ 51
Weighted average

fair value of options
granted during the year............... $ 16.63 $ 23.06 $ 17.68

Options exercisable at year end were (in thousands): 2000-896; 1999-691; and 1998-737. The weighted average exercise
price for options exercisable was $50 per share and $49 per share for year-end 2000 and 1999, respectively. Exercise prices
for options outstanding at year-end 2000 range from $27 to $75. The weighted average remaining contractual life of these
options is eight years. An additional 755,956 and 1,727,156 shares of common stock were available for grants at year-
end 2000 and 1999, respectively. Under the 1993 restricted stock plan, at year-end 2000, awards of 56,248 shares of restricted
common stock were outstanding. The 1997 restricted stock plan provided for a maximum of 300,000 shares of restricted
common stock to be reserved for awards. Under this plan, at year-end 2000, awards of 54,000 shares of restricted common
stock were outstanding and an additional 244,950 shares were available for grants.

The fair value of the options granted in 2000, 1999 and 1998 was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following assumptions:

For the year 2000 1999 1998

Expected dividend yield..................cooooiii 2.7 % 2.0 % 2.0 %
Expected stock price volatility..................oooooi 20.7 % 29.4 % 28.7 %
Risk-free interest rate...........................c.cooiiiiiii 5.1 % 6.8 % 4.8%

Expected life of options.. 8.0 years 8.0 years 7.0 years

Assuming that the company had accounted for its employee stock options using the fair value method and amortized such to
expense over the options vesting period, pro forma net income and diluted earnings per share would have been $189 million and
$3.71 per diluted share in 2000; $96 million and $1.73 per diluted share in 1999; and $62 million and $1.10 per diluted share
in 1998. The pro forma disclosures may not be indicative of future amounts due to changes in subjective input assumptions
and because the options vest over several years with additional future option grants expected.
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NOTE 7 ‘ EARNINGS PER SHARE
Numerators and denominators used in computing earnings per share are as follows:
For the year 2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
Numerators for basic and diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations...................c....c..c..... $ 195 $ 191 $ 88
Discontinued Operations ....................ccccccocooiiiiiiiien - (92) (21)
Effect of accounting change ... - - (3)
Net INCOMEe. ... $ 195 $ 99 $ 64
Denominator for basic earnings per share:
Weighted average shares outstanding................................ 50.9 55.6 55.8
Dilutive effect of stock options ... - 2 a1
Denominator for diluted earnings per share.................... 50.9 55.8 55.9
NOTE 8 ‘ ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of other comprehensive income are as follows:
Unrealized
Currency Gains on Minimum
Translation Available-for-Sale Pension
Adjustments Securities Liability Total
(in millions)
Balance at year end 1998...................... $ (17) $ 2 $ (2) $ (17)
Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale securities.......................... - (22) - (22)
Deferred taxes relating to unrealized gains
on available-for-sale securities..................... - 7 - 7
Foreign currency translation adjustments......... 1 - - 1
Balance at year end 1999............................ (16) (13) (2) (31)
Unrealized gains
available-for-sale securities.......................... - 36 - 36
Deferred taxes relating to unrealized gains
on available-for-sale securities...................... - (13) - (13)
Minimum pension liability............................ - - (3) (3)
Deferred taxes relating to minimum
pension liability.................. - - 1 1
Deferred taxes relating relating to
foreign currency translation adjustment....... 2 - - 2
Balance at year end 2000.................... $ (14) $ 10 $ (4) $ (8)
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NOTE 9 ‘ CONTINGENCIES

There are pending against the company and its subsidiaries
lawsuits, claims and environmental matters arising in the
regular course of business.

In the opinion of management, recoveries and claims, if
any, by plaintiffs or claimants resulting from the foregoing
litigation will not have a material adverse effect on its
operations or the financial position of the company.

NOTE 10 ‘ SEGMENT INFORMATION
The company has three reportable segments: paper, build-

ing products and financial services. The paper segment
manufactures containerboard and corrugated packaging.

tements

The building products segment manufactures a variety
of building materials and manages the company’s timber
resources. The financial services segment operates a savings
bank and engages in mortgage banking, real estate and
insurance brokerage activities. All prior periods have been
restated to reflect the discontinued operations of the
bleached paperboard operation.

These segments are managed as separate business units. The
company evaluates performance based on operating income
before special charges, corporate expenses and income taxes.
Parent company interest expense is not allocated to the
business segments. The accounting policies of the segments
are the same as those described in the accounting policy notes
to the financial statements. Corporate and other includes cor-
porate expenses, special charges and discontinued operations.

Corporate
Building Financial and Other
Paper Products Services Eliminations Total

(in millions)

For the year or at year end 2000:

Revenues from external customers...................... $ 2,089 $ 828 $ 1,369 $ - $ 4,286
Depreciation, depletion and amortization........... 131 63 24 7 225
Operating inCOMe ................cocoiiiiiii . 205 68 189 (48) @) 414
Financial Services net interest income................. - - 389 - 389
Total @ssets..............ccocooviiiiii 1,589 1,199 15,324 30 18,142
Investment in equity method investees............... 4 33 27 - 64
Capital expenditures 115 87 34 21 257
For the year or at year end 1999:

Revenues from external customers...................... $ 1,869 $ 823 $ 1,116 $ - $ 3,808
Depreciation, depletion and amortization........... 138 59 22 6 225
Operating inCOMe ..............c..cocoviiiiii . 103 174 138 (30) 385
Financial Services net interest income................. - - 299 - 299
Total @ssets..............ccocooviiiiii 1,676 1,090 13,321 99 16,186
Investment in equity method investees............... 8 27 14 - 49
Capital expenditures.....................cooi 8o 92 26 6 204
For the year or at year end 1998:

Revenues from external customers...................... $ 1,707 $ 660 $ 1,036 $ - $ 3,403
Depreciation, depletion and amortization........... 138 53 18 4 213
Operating income.............................. 39 12 154 (75) ) 230
Financial Services net interest income................. - - 244 - 244
Total @ssets..............cccoooviiiiiii 1,728 1,043 12,376 721 (c) 15,868
Investment in equity method investees............... 8 29 3 - 40
Capital expenditures......................cco 79 73 39 5 196

(a) Includes a special charge of $15 million applicable to the building products segment.

(b) Includes a special charge of $47 million of which $37 million applies to the paper segment and $10 million applies to the building products segment.

(¢) Includes net assets of discontinued operations.
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The following table includes revenues and property and equipment based on the location of the operation:

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

2000 1999 1998
(in millions)
For the year
Revenues from external customers
United States .. $ 4,122 $ 3,672 $ 3,286
Canada...........ooo 33 27 4
IMEXICO . 106 82 68
South AMETica..........oooooiiiiiiiii i 25 27 45
Total......oo $ 4,286 $ 3,808 $ 3,403
At year end
Property and Equipment
United STates ...........oooiiiiiiiiiii i $ 2,069 $ 2,090 $ 2,115
Canada...........ooo 63 61 56
IMEXICO . 34 28 27
South America........................ccoii 18 18 40
Total......oo $ 2,184 $ 2,197 $ 2,238
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NOTE 11 ‘ SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Selected quarterly financial results for the years 2000 and 1999 are summarized below. Quarterly financial results have
been restated to reflect the reclassification of shipping and handling costs.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in millions except per share amounts)
2000
Total revenues.......................ccoooiiiiii $ 1,066 $ 1,096 $ 1,081 $ 1,043
Manufacturing net revenues................................. 757 753 734 673
Manufacturing gross profit.....................ccooo.. 148 140 107 81
Financial Services operating income
before taxes..............cc..oocooiiiiii 35 48 50 56
Income from continuing operations.................... 55 62 43 (@) 35
Net INCOME...........ooooiiiiiiiii i 55 62 43 () 35
Earnings per Share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations............. $ 1.04 $ 1.20 $ .87 $ 72
Net income 1.04 1.20 .87 72
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations............. $ 1.04 $ 1.20 $ .87 $ 72
Net inCoOme............cccooooiiiiiiiiiii 1.04 1.20 .87 72
1999
Total revenues.......................ccoooiiiiii $ 880 $ 937 $ 988 $ 1,003
Manufacturing net revenues ................................ 622 675 701 694
Manufacturing gross profit...................c.ccooo. 101 128 143 140
Financial Services operating income
before taxes................ccccooooiiiiiiii 27 34 4 36
Income from continuing operations.................... $ 26 $ 48 $ 60 $ 57
Discontinued operations... (7) (7) (80) 2
Net INCOME...........ocooviiiiiiiiiiiiiie $ 19 $ 4 $ (20) $ 59
Earnings per Share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations............. $ .47 $ .88 $ 107 $ 1.03
Discontinued operations.............................. (.13) (14) (1.43) .04
Net INCOME...........ocooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee $ .34 $ .74 $ (.36) $ 107
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations............. $ .46 $ .87 $ 107 $ 1.03
Discontinued operations.............................. (.13) (.13) (1.43) .04
Net INCOME...........ocoooiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiee $ .33 $ .74 $ (.36) $ 107

(a) Includes a $15 million special charge related to the discontinued fiber-cement operation.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management has prepared and is responsible for the company’s financial statements, including the notes thereto. They
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily include amounts based
on judgments and estimates by management. All financial information in this annual report is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

The company maintains internal accounting control systems and related policies and procedures designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s
authorization and properly recorded, and that accounting records may be relied upon for the preparation of financial
statements and other financial information. The design, monitoring and revision of internal accounting control systems
involve, among other things, management’s judgment with respect to the relative cost and expected benefits of specific
control measures. The company also maintains an internal auditing function that evaluates and formally reports on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal accounting controls, policies and procedures.

The company’s financial statements have been examined by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fairness of the presentation of the statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, composed solely of outside directors, meets with the independent
auditors and internal auditors to evaluate the effectiveness of the work performed by them in discharging their respective
responsibilities and to assure their independent and free access to the committee.

Louils R. BRILL
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer

KENNETH M. JASTROW, II
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Temple-Inland Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Temple-Inland Inc. and subsidiaries as of December
30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Temple-Inland Inc. and subsidiaries at December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2000, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Austin, Texas
January 31, 2001
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